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OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
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PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddimg statements within the meaning of Section @fLihe Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Such forward-looking statements include, agnathers, those statements including the wordséetgy’ “anticipates,” “intends,”
“believes,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “continue” andsimilar language or the negative of such termstioer comparable terminology. Although
we believe that the expectations reflected in tmevérd-looking statements are reasonable, Hea#h8tis actual results may differ
significantly from those projected in the forwambking statements. Factors that might cause oribomé to such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in the section KAactors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Fof+K and elsewhere in this document. In
addition, factors that we are not currently awdreanld harm our future operating results. You stlaarefully review the risks described in
other documents HealthStream files from time tcetimith the Securities and Exchange Commission. &felcautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements, which spasll as of the date of this Annual Report on FArK. HealthStream undertakes no
obligation to publicly release any revisions to thevard-looking statements or reflect events ocuinstances after the date of this document.

Iltem 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (HealthStream or the Compangyiges Internet-based learning, talent managenaedtresearch solutions for healthcare
organizations—all designed to assess and devedopdbple that deliver patient care which, in tgupports the improvement of business and
clinical outcomes. Our learning and talent managermeoducts are used by healthcare organizationsetet a broad range of their training,
certification, competency assessment, performappeagal, and development needs, while our resqanrtucts provide our customers
information about patients’ experiences, workfagogagement, physician relations, and communitygpi@ns of their services.
HealthStream’s customers include healthcare orgéinizs, pharmaceutical and medical device compaarasother participants in the
healthcare industry. Our customer base includesappately 3,000 healthcare organizations (predaeily acute-care facilities) throughout
all 50 states.

Our core learning and talent management produbeigiealthStream Learning Centdr  (HLC), which isvéeed on our proprietary platform
provided via a software-as-a-service (SaaS) madéhe Internet. At December 31, 2012, HealthStrhachapproximately 3.1 million
contracted, primarily hospital-based subscribetsiéoHLC, which include 2.94 million subscribereealdy implemented and 162,000
subscribers in the process of implementation. Wieeteeducational activities and training coursesver our customers through the HLC, w/
we deliver competency management and performarnmaiapl tools through the HealthStream Competerenyt&® and HealthStream
Performance Center, respectively, on our SaaS-li@a#fdrm. Our research products and service ofésrinclude quality and satisfaction
surveys, data analyses of survey results, and o#search-based measurement tools focused ontsapéysicians, employees, and members
of the community. Our core research product isthgent Insights™ survey, which accounted for apipnately 78 percent of our research
product business, based on revenue, during 2012.

As we place greater emphasis on offering our custsmew and innovative ways of assessing and daweloheir workforces, simulation is
becoming a growing part of our product portfolio.June 2010, we announced a collaborative arrangtenith Laerdal Medical A/S (Laerdal
Medical), a leader in healthcare simulation, tovje a suite of products for distributing trainisignulations and scenarios directly over the
Internet and managing simulation centers worldw&mStore® , which allows simulation customers tmsie, license, and download
scenarios directly to simulators over the Internets launched in the first quarter of 2011. SimMgparaan application for managing simulation
centers, shares the same platform with our HLC veawilaunched in early 2012. We have a long-tetatiomship with Laerdal Medical and
have been a distributor of its HeartCdtle  produnet for the last seven years. HeartC8tle  uses taskllmaanikins that assist healthcare
professionals in studying, training, and testingvithat is commonly known as cardiopulmonary regation (CPR) certification.

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Comwasyincorporated in 1990 and began providing itsrhet-based solutions in 1999 and its
survey and research solutions in 2005. Includirdjtemhal offices in Laurel, Maryland, Brentwood, Aressee, and Austin, Texas,
HealthStream had 496 full-time and 91 parte employees as of December 31, 2012. Health@thess evolved from a company with an ini
focus on technology-based training to a companyigiog outcomes-focused learning, talent managenagt research solutions to the
nation’s healthcare providers.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationalatle Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicare ledicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately $2ili&n in 2010, or 17.9% of the U.S. gross dotieeproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for approximately 31.4% of the $2.5%9drilindustry. According to the Bureau of Labor t&tics, approximately 17.2 million
professionals are employed in the healthcare segofi¢ime domestic economy, with approximately 5i0iom employed in acute-care
hospitals, our primary target market for our leagjitalent management, and research products. Beagmber 31, 2012, approximately

3.1 million healthcare professionals were subscsilt@ our Internet-based HLC platform, which in@u2i94 million subscribers already
implemented and 162,000 subscribers in the pragfeissplementation.

All of the 5.0 million hospital-based healthcarefessionals that work in the nation’s approximat&00 acute-care hospitals are
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required by federal mandates and accrediting badiesmplete training in a number of areas. Thasing includes safety training mandated
by both the Occupational Safety and Health Admiatgin (OSHA) and The Joint Commission (an indegendnot-forprofit organization tha
accredits and certifies healthcare organizatiomspragrams in the United States), as well as tngioin patient information confidentiality
required under the Health Insurance Portability Aodountability Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel shesthigve also contributed to the need for facilitgdal workforce development as well as
additional assessment and competency based traFangxample, the American Hospital Associatid®BlA) report “Workforce 2015:
Strategy Trumps Shortage” (January 2010) estintatgghe shortfall of physicians in 2020 will bepapximately 109,000 and the shortage of
registered nurses in 2025 will be the equivaler&ff,000 full-time employees. We believe that dffgitraining and education for hospital
personnel is increasingly being utilized as a &@rand recruitment incentive.

Many healthcare professionals use continuing edhrcét keep abreast of the latest developmentsvaaet licensing and certification
requirements. Continuing education is requirechimses, emergency medical services personnelrdsponder personnel, radiologic
personnel, and physicians. Pharmaceutical and @letiiwice companies must also provide their medinthlstry sales representatives with
training mandated for the healthcare industry aaithing for new products. Such companies also pl@gupport and content for education anc
training of audiences that use their products mtheare organizations.

A large portion of the nation’s hospitals utilizesearch and survey tools to gain insight abouéptsi experiences, to assess workforce
competency and engagement, to determine the sthplgy/sician relations, and to measure the peropptabout the hospitals in the
communities they serve. Industry-wide intereshigéasing in research due in part, to the CAHPS ngGmer Assessment of Healthcare
Providers and Systems) Hospital Survey launche@M$ in partnership with the Agency for Healthcaes®&arch and Quality (AHRQ).
Hospitals must submit data to CMS for certain resgiquality measures—which for inpatients incluttesCAHPS® Hospital Survey—in
order to receive the full market basket increaghedr reimbursement payment rates from CMS. Haspthat fail to submit this survey data
will incur a reduction of two percentage pointghe inpatient market basket update amount fordheviing federal fiscal year. We are
designated as a certified vendor for and offer CAEMospital Survey services.

The healthcare education industry is highly fragreénvaries significantly in delivery methodsd. , online products, live events, written
materials, and manikins for simulatitwased training), and is composed of a wide vaonégntities competing for customers. The sheermel

of healthcare information available to satisfy douing education needs, rapid advances in medeatldpments, and the time constraints tha
healthcare professionals face make it difficultjtickly and efficiently access the continuing edigcacontent most relevant to an individual's
practice or profession. Historically, healthcarefpssionals have received continuing educationticing through offline publications, such
as medical journals or by attending conferencessenuinars. In addition, other healthcare workets@rarmaceutical and medical device
manufacturers’ sales and internal regulatory persbasually fulfill their training from external welors or internal training departments. While
these approaches satisfy the ongoing educatiotraiméhg requirements, they are typically costlg amconvenient. In addition, live courses
often limited in the breadth of offerings and da pmovide a method for tracking training completidime results of these traditional methods,
both from a business and compliance standpoingiffieult to track and measure. While hospitalsl drealth systems occasionally survey theil
patients, physicians, and employees using theiriatemnal resources, the practice is limited sithey do not typically possess the valuable
comparative benchmarking data that is availablmfimdependent survey research vendors.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to opetatéer intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésattuctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managedeqanograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesino@nto experience rising operating costs, couplgh increased pressure to measure an(
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed td thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvingteing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabilities, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM’'S SOLUTIONS

HealthStream’s products and services are orgamitedwo segments—HealthStream Learning & Talenhitgement (formerly referenced as
HealthStream Learning) and HealthStream Researchatetilectively help healthcare organizations ntkeir ongoing training, education,
assessment, competency management, and complieeds.We provide our learning, talent managemadtr@search solutions to a wide
range of customers within the healthcare industry.

HealthStream Learninc & Talent Management—Within HealthStream Learning & Talent Managemev#,bring training, assessment, talent
development, and talent management solutions tegetith administrative and management tools onptaiform through our HLC, HCC, and
HPC. We also offer a more streamlined version eftih.C, HealthStream Express™, along with HealtreBir€onnect, a content delivery
platform that is designed for the singular purpofallowing access to our extensive content lilgmriThese content libraries allow HLC
customers to subscribe to a wide array of additiooarseware. Additionally, through our Hospital&it capability—also on our platform,
medical device companies can offer online trairgngport for their products and sponsor continuishgcation directly to healthcare workers.

Our learning management system supports healtlacinéistrators in configuring training to meet firecise needs of various groups of
employees, modifying training materials, and docuotimg training completion. As of December 31, 2034, million healthcare
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professionals had contracted subscriptions folmiernetbased HLC services, which include 2.94 million suliers already implemented a
162,000 subscribers in the process of implememaRaicing for the HLC is subscription based, wihs based on the number of subscribers,
courseware provided, and other factors. We off@niing, implementation, and account managemenicgsrvo facilitate adoption of our
products. Fees for training are based on the timleefforts of the personnel involved. Implementatiees vary based on the size, scope, and
complexity of the project. Offered via a SaaS mpdat Internet-based platform and our coursewagéhasted in a central data center that
allows authorized subscribers Internet access teenvices, thereby eliminating the need for onsital implementations of installed learning
management products.

Other Applications on our Platform-In addition to the HLC, we offer an array of otlagaplications on our platform, each serving a ueiqu
function for hospitals and health systems. EacHiejon on our platform is SaaS-based and hasats value proposition and revenue stream

e The Authoring Center is a platform extension thatvjmles healthcare organizations the capabilitgréate Internebased courses
moving their existing course material online orf-seithoring new material and electively sharingsthenaterials with our other
customers through a courseware exchange. We dtsofafthoring Pro, an upgraded product which inelsid licensed image
library, as an additional subscription to this prod Team Author, a collaborative authoring appiara was launched in 2012,
Pricing for these products is subscription baseth fees based on the number of subscribers amd ¢d\penetration of services
within the customer organizatio

* The HealthStream Competency Center™ (HCC) is oaS8#sed platform extension for competency managimehealthcare
organizations, which provides customers tools s@ss competency and appraise performance. Competssessment is a
requirement of hospitals and healthcare organigatior maintaining accreditation based on requirgsiom The Joint
Commission to evaluate, document, and report paidace competencies. We believe that the HCC dffiersffective means of
determining which competencies are associatedeeitih position and evaluating and documenting coenpgtassessmen

e The HealthStream Performance Center™ (HPC) is aa6Sased platform extension for performance manegefor healthcare
organizations, which provides an automated, pageperformance appraisal process. The HPC wasHaamdarch of 2012. We
believe the HPC offers an effective means of sttieémg the performance appraisal process, whickgdn increase completion
rates and consistency with all aspects of hos| workforce appraisal process:

e SimCente —which is a suite of applications—wasoamted in January 2011. We formed a collaboratikengement, named
SimVentures, with Laerdal Medical in 2010 to offeoducts and services aimed at accelerating tHmbbaoption of simulation-
based learning by healthcare providers with a f@rusnproving clinical competencies and patientoutes. The venture offers
healthcare organizations and medical and nursingads worldwide a range of fully integrated Saagliaptions that accelerate
development and distribution of simulation contemable enterprise-wide management of simulatiotecg, simulators, and
programs; and support assessment of the effecigarfesimulation training as part of complete @uia. SimStor@ , one segment
of our collaborative arrangement with Laerdal, bregperations in the first quarter of 2011 and cew simulation management
platform, SimManager, was launched in early 2012\3ew, our new debriefing system for simulationskd training, also was
launched in early 201.

e The HealthStream Improvement Center™ is a SaaS#iatform extension related to our research affgriThis extension is an
online system for hospital leaders to optimize aocklerate the execution of improvement plansudiol those based on results
from our patient, employee, physician, and comnyusiirveys. The Improvement Center, a licensed oy, is one of a number
of solutions from HealthStream Research that ircladomprehensive line of survey products, natibeathmarks, HCAHPS
Improvement Library, consulting services, and othgport tools

HealthStream Researc—HealthStream Research complements HealthStreamibga& Talent Management’s product and servicefigs
by providing hospital-based customers with Patiesights™, Employee Insights™, Physician Insightaiy Community Insights™ surveys,
data analyses of survey results, and other resdasdd measurement tools. Our services are desigmedvide thorough analyses with
insightful recommendations for change; benchmarkaygability using our comprehensive databasesransgulting services to identify
solutions for our customers based on their suresylts. Clients are able to access and analyzesiineiey results data through Insights
Online™, our secure web-based reporting platforom. €drvey and research solutions focus on providiagstically valid data to assist our
customers with their decision making related tartbeganization’s performance improvement objecivi@ addition to collecting and reporting
data, we provide analysis and consulting to heftaraers understand their survey results and therlyiilg impact on their business. It is with
this insight that healthcare organizations are &btievelop plans for improved performance thatleadelivered through our learning
solutions. Pricing for these services is basecderstirvey type, delivery method, size of the suimstrument, sample size, frequency of sur
cycles, and other factors.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

We acquired Decision Critical, Inc. (DCI) in Jun@l2 and Sy.Med Development, Inc. (Sy.Med) in Octétid 2. For additional information
regarding these acquisitions, please see Notdledfonsolidated Financial Statements and ltenManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” ildd elsewhere in this report.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our learning, talent management, angares solutions to customers across a broad rdrggites within the healthcare industry,
including healthcare organizations (including goweent entities) and pharmaceutical and medicalcgesdmpanies. We derive a substantial
portion of our revenues from a relatively small fagmnof customers, although no single customer sgmted more than 10 percent of our
revenues during 2012, 2011, or 2010. Examples stbouers that have purchased or contracted for ptedund services from HealthStream
include: HCA, Inc., Tenet Healthcare Corporatioat®lic Health Initiatives, Community Health Sys&erinc., Lifepoint Hospitals, Inc., and
Ardent Health Services, LLC.

SALES AND MARKETING

We market our products and services primarily tgfoaur direct sales teams, our consultants, an@é@zount relationship managers, who are
based at our corporate headquarters in Nashvidlen@ssee and in our additional offices locatedaur&l, Maryland and Brentwood,
Tennessee, as well as remote home office salesdosaAs of December 31, 2012, our HealthStreaarhieg & Talent Management sales
relationship management personnel consisted offflayees—of which 62 carried sales quotas—and @altHStream Research sales and
consultant personnel consisted of 29 employees—haftwl4 carried sales quotas. Our geographicadlpatised field sales organization is
divided into teams focused on selling our learrdangd talent management products and a separataeatedocused on selling our research
products. In addition to sales professionals, e amploy strategic account personnel that managku@est customer relationships as we
account relationship managers and consultants vdrk te develop and expand relationships, includiogtract renewals.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to prmour products and services, including produdlogs, user groups—including our
annual customer Summit, trade shows, online pranathd demonstrations, telemarketing campaigndicoabations, distribution of product-
specific literature, direct mail, and advertising.

Over most of the last eleven years, we have hastamhference in Nashville for our customers knos/ithe “Summit.” We have utilized this
client conference to reach out to existing and mitdecustomers and business partners, provideitigiand educational services, and to
demonstrate our new and existing product offerifgs.have marketing teams that are responsiblédésetinitiatives and for working with and
supporting our product management and sales tedinxecember 31, 2012, our marketing personnel stediof 15 employees.

OPERATIONS

We believe our ability to establish and maintaimgderm customer relationships, adoption of oudpots and services, recurring sales, and
development and maintenance of new and existindyats are dependent on the strength of our opestaustomer service, product
development and maintenance, training, and othmgra@titeams. As of December 31, 2012, these peesaonsisted of approximately 157
employees for our Learning & Talent Management sagrand approximately 274 employees for our Rekesggment, of which 169
employees worked in our interviewing center. Ouarlnéng & Talent Management operations team conefgpgrsonnel associated with
customer support, implementation services, prodegelopment and maintenance, training, and proj@ctagement. Our Research operations
team consists of personnel associated with phdeeviawing, distributing and processing paper-basegey instruments, data analysis and
reporting of survey results, and project management

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be reliable, secatksealable. Our software is a combination of pedgry and commercially available software
and operating systems. Our software supports hgpatid management of content, publication of our siteds, execution of courseware,
registration and tracking of users, collection, pling, and analysis of survey data, and reportifigformation for both internal and external
use. We designed the platforms that provide owises to allow each component to be independenties by adding commercially available
hardware and a combination of commercially avadaid proprietary software components.

Our software applications, servers, and netwonastfucture that deliver the majority of our seeg@re hosted by third-party data center
providers. Our primary data center is located t&rafour rated hosting facility in Chicago, lllir and our disaster recovery data center is
hosted by a separate provider located in FrankKimnessee. Both of our providers maintain our egait in secure, limited access
environments, supported by redundant power, enwiggntal conditioning, and network connectivity. Quoviders’ hosting centers are
connected to the Internet through multiple, redumdaighspeed fiber optic circuits. The transactional systsupporting the data collection
our survey products are located in secure, limiigrkss environments located at our Nashville, Tesaeeand Laurel, Maryland offices and
feed our core business intelligence platforms sdpmpour survey products located at our primargthmy facility in Chicago. Company
personnel monitor all servers, networks, and systema continuous basis. Together with our progidee
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employ several levels of enterprise firewall systeand data abstraction to protect our databass®mar information, and courseware library
from unauthorized access. All of our productioradatated in our Chicago data center is backed updl time to our disaster recovery data
center. Monthly snap-shots of our data are stofesdite with a third-party data storage provider.

COMPETITION

In addition to the competing healthcare educatielivdry methods in the industry, we also have diceenpetitors. In the learning and talent
management business, a number of companies offigpetitive learning management products and tal@magement modules to the
healthcare industry. We compete with companies agdBornerstone OnDemand, Healthcare Source, Q&&RA, SAP, and SumTotal
Systems that provide their services to multiplausides, including healthcare. During 2012 SAP @ndcle gained greater presence in this
market by way of acquisitions; SAP acquired Sudeas®rs and Oracle acquired TALEO. We also comyételarge medical publishers that
have operating units that offer learning managersgstems that focus on healthcare, such as Reeui&$sroup’s MC Strategies. In the
survey business, we see competition from larg®enaliy recognized survey research firms such agakvaternational, Gallup, National
Research Corporation, Press Ganey Associates,sBiafal Research Consultants, Inc., and otherss@uey business also experiences direc
competition from vendors who provide survey reseaervices to other industries including Kenexaictlis now owned by IBM, and
Foresight, which is now owned by TNS Global. Fipailh our simulation business, we compete with Be_Medical, CAE/Meti, and EMS.

We believe our learning and talent managementisalsitwhich include both products and services fécititate training, assessment and
development for healthcare professionals, a widerement of courseware, a mechanism for measuaitisfaction and/or other results, and the
ability to provide all our services on a singletfilam over the Internet, provide us with a competitadvantage. In our survey research
business, we believe our large proprietary databiservey results, technology infrastructure des@yto automate the processing of survey
results, proprietary core survey instruments atibag@lan development methodology, and our abititguickly deliver relevant online
courseware targeted at addressing survey relatdh§is provide us with a competitive advantageadnsimulation business, our SimCeritér
products enable simulation centers to purchaseseaare online, manage students and resourcesravidepa debriefing capability in an
integrated manner. Built on the HLC platform andwgur collaborative arrangement with Laerdal Madia world leader in simulation
equipment, we believe we have a competitive adgenitathis area. We believe that the principal cetitipe factors affecting the marketing of
our learning, talent management, and researchisoduto the healthcare industry include:

. features of the HLC product, including reportingamagement functionality, ability to manage a varadtevents or
modalities, courseware assignment, curriculum memagt, scalability, and the ability to track uitiion and results

. scope and variety of Internet-based learning covase available, including mandated content for OSHi#e Joint
Commission, patient safety, and HIPAA requiremectsnpetencybased content, courseware scenarios that drivdations,
courseware that provides CPR certification, as aglhe ability of our customers to create and thast own web-enabled
courseware

. our singular focus on the healthcare industry anddeep healthcare experti:

. scope and quality of professional services offeiredduding survey execution, implementation, benahking, training and
the expertise and technical knowledge of the custe’ employees

. competitive pricing, which supports a return ongstiment to customers when compared to other atteerdelivery
methods

. customer service and suppc
. effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts;
. company reputatior

Collectively, we believe these capabilities provigewith the ability to improve the quality of herdare by assessing and developing the pi
who deliver care.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
Regulation of the Internet and the Privacy and Seaity of Personal Information

The laws and regulations that govern our busineaage rapidly. For example, the United States gowent and the governments of some
states and foreign countries have attempted tdatgactivities on the Internet. The following a@me of the evolving areas of law that are
relevant to our business:

. Privacy and Security LawCurrent and proposed federal, state and foreigrapyiand security regulations and other laws
restricting the collection, use, security and disare of personal information could limit our atyilio collect information or
use and disclose the information in our databasdsrived from other sources to generate reverntpry be costly to
implement security or other measures designedrgpbowith any new legislation. For example, the Aiman Recovery an
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) expanded the appilin of certain HIPAA privacy an
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security requirements to apply directly to us &sisiness associate of our customers. On JanuaB028, the United States
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) dsumplementing regulations, and we may incur sufiihcosts to
comply with these regulations. Compliance is gelheraquired by September 23, 20:

. Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adamtedoroposed laws governing the content of
material transmitted over the Internet. These wellaws relating to obscenity, indecency, libel dathmation. We could be
liable if content delivered by us violates thesgutations.

. Information Security Accountability RegulaticAs a business associate of our customers, we quéed to report certain
breaches of protected health information to outausrs, which must in turn notify affected indivas, HHS and, in certa
situations involving large breaches, the media. Hét®ntly issued regulations that create a presomtitat all non-
permitted uses or disclosures of unsecured, pextdwalth information are breaches unless the edvartity or business
associate establishes that there is a low probabik information has been compromised. In addjtiee are subject to
certain state laws that relate to privacy or thgoréng of security breaches. For example, Califoivas enacted legislation
requiring disclosure of security breaches involvigsonal information and medical information. Waynncur costs to
comply with these security requirements. Becauseyméthese laws are new and there is little guidarelated to many of
these laws, it is difficult to estimate the cosbaf compliance with these laws. Further, Conghessconsidered bills that
would require companies to engage independent plairtles to audit the companies’ computer infororasecurity. If the
Company is required to report a breach of secuority one of the Company’s customers is requiretefmort a breach of
security by the Company, the Comp’s business could be negatively impac

. Sales and Use TaXhrough December 31, 2012, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all state
which we have employees or have a significant lefshles activity. While HealthStream expects that approach is
appropriate, other states or foreign jurisdictioresy seek to impose tax collection obligations omganies like us that
engage in online commerce. If they do, these otitiga could limit the growth of electronic commeinegeneral and limit
our ability to profit from the sale of our servicager the Interne

Laws and regulations directly applicable to contegulation, e-commerce, Internet communicationd,the privacy and security of personal
information are becoming more prevalent. Congressigues considering laws regarding Internet taxati he dynamic nature of this
regulatory environment increases the uncertairggnding the marketplace impact of such regulafidgre enactment of any additional laws or
regulations may increase our cost of conductingniess or otherwise harm our business, financiatlitimm and operating results.

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Servics for Healthcare Professionals

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$H2SHA regulations require employers to provide frairto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace leds. Employers in the healthcare industry areiredio provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosype control, laboratory safety and tuberculasisction control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetigpt of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

The Joint Commissioihe Joint Commission mandates that employers il¢adthcare industry provide certain workplace tyad@d patient
interaction training to employees. Training reqdiby The Joint Commission may include programsnéeciion control, patient bill of rights,
radiation safety, and incident reporting. Healtkoarganizations are required to provide and doctitnaiming on these topics to receive
accreditation from The Joint Commission. In additidhe Joint Commission imposes continuing edunagguirements on physicians that
relate to each physician’s specific staff appointtae

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA).HIPAA regulations require certain organizationg|iling most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdayy the use and disclosure of health-relateatinétion. HIPAA regulations also require
these organizations to provide reasonable and pppte safeguards to protect the privacy, integaiig confidentiality of individually
identifiable healthcare information. These healtbeaganizations are required to establish, mairdad provide training with regard to their
policies and procedures for protecting the intggaiid confidentiality of individually identifiableealthcare information. Healthcare
organizations are required to document trainingh@se topics to support their compliance. ARRA exieal the application of certain HIPAA
privacy and security requirements to apply direttlgompanies (known as business associates)rhwtlp services to certain healthcare
organizations. Under the regulations that implentieese ARRA requirements, business associateshaindstibcontractors may be directly
subject to criminal and civil sanctions for viotais of HIPAA privacy security standards.
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The American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANG@CC, a subsidiary of the American Nurses AssoarafiANA), provides individuals and
organizations throughout the nursing professioin wie resources they need to achieve practicelercel ANCC's internationally renowned
credentialing programs certify nurses in specipifctice areas; recognize healthcare organizatarromoting safe, positive work
environments through the Magnet Recognition Programd the Pathway to Excellene®rogram; and accredit providers of continuing mg
education. In addition, ANCC'’s Institute for Crediating Innovatior® offers an array of informatioreald educational services and products t
support its core credentialing programs. ANCC €ediion exams validate nurses’ skills, knowledageq abilities. More than a quarter million
nurses have been certified by ANCC since 1990. Muaia 80,000 advanced practice nurses are curregtiified by ANCC. The ANCC
Magnet Recognition Prografn recognizes healthcayamizations that provide the very best in nursiage@nd professionalism in nursing
practice. The program also provides a vehicle feseminating best practices and strategies amorsingusystems. The ANCC Magnet
Recognition Program is the gold standard for ngrgixcellence. The Pathway to Excellefce Prograwgrazes the essential elements of an
optimal nursing practice environment. The desigmai$ earned by healthcare organizations thatematk environments where nurses can
flourish. The award substantiates the professisatidfaction of nurses and identifies best placegadrk.

Continuing Nursing Education (CNEJtate nurse practice laws are usually the sourestbiority for establishing the state board of mgs
requirements. The state board of nursing estalslidiestate’s CNE requirements for professionadesirCNE credits are provided through
accredited providers that have been approved bRE@C Commission on Accreditation and/or the stadard of nursing. CNE requirements
vary widely from state to state. Thirty-two statequire registered nurses to certify that they res@imulated a minimum number of CNE
credits in order to maintain their licenses. In sastates, the CNE requirement only applies tocenbure of advance practice nurses, or
additional CNEs may be required of this categorpurses. Required CNE ranges from 12 to 50 creditsially, with reporting generally on a
bi-annual basis. Board certifications (e.g., CNO&e+tification of perioperative nursing) also reguCNE credits, with certain percentages
required in specific categories based on the @eatibn type. We are an accredited provider of GiyEhe ANCC.

Continuing Medical Education (CME$tate licensing boards, professional organizatémsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingioa@ducation hours to maintain their licensesa@ally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tat#sth and track CME requirements. Forty-eightestaédical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements, as well as Puerto Rico, Guamtlaadl.S. Virgin Islands. The number of CME howeguired by each state ranges fron
to 50 hours per year. Other sources of CME requérgmare state medical societies and practiceapebbards. The failure to obtain the
requisite amount and type of CME could result in-nenewal of the physiciaslicense to practice medicine and/or membershgriredical o
practice specialty society. The American Medicaddd@ation’s (AMA) Physician Recognition Award céidate (PRA) is widely accepted as
proof of participation in CME. The AMA classifiesmtinuing medical education activities as eithete@ary 1, which includes formal CME
activities, or Category 2, which includes most mfial activities. Sponsors want to designate CMiviiets for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™
because this has become the benchmark for qualftyrinally organized educational activities. Mogeacies nationwide that require CME
participation specifAMA PRA Category 1 Credit™Only institutions and organizations accreditegitavide CME can designate an activity
for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™The Accreditation Council for Continuing Medidadlucation (ACCME) is responsible for awarding
accreditation status to state medical societiesligaéschools, and other institutions and orgaionatthat provide CME activities for a natiol
audience of physicians. Only institutions and oiz@itions are accredited. The ACCME and state medagieties do not accredit or approve
individual activities. State medical societies, @bieg under the aegis of the ACCME, accredit tngtns and organizations that provide CME
activities primarily for physicians within the stadr bordering states. We are an accredited proeideME by the ACCME.

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMSMS has articulated a vision for health care qualithe right care for every person every
time. To achieve this vision, CMS is committed to ctuat is safe, effective, timely, patient-centerfficient, and equitable. Value-based
purchasing (VBP), which links payment more direttijthe quality of care provided, is a strategyt & help to transform the current payn
system by rewarding providers for delivering higltality, efficient clinical care. Through a numbémablic reporting programs, demonstrat
projects, pilot programs, and voluntary efforts, Eklas launched VBP initiatives in hospitals, phgsioffices, nursing homes, home health
services, and dialysis facilities. Further, purguarthe Patient Protection and Affordable Care, Astamended by the Healthcare and Educ
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, ACA), CMS implementing a number of initiatives designedirtk payments to quality and
efficiency, including a VBP program for inpatierddpital services.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers antédi8ygCAHPS)CMS has partnered with AHRQ to develop a standacdsurvey
instrument and data collection methodology for mmeag patients’ perspectives on hospital care. ifitent of the survey is to produce
comparable data on the patients’ perspectiveddw alonsumer-based comparisons between hospitas,iacentives to drive hospitals to
improve their quality of care, and increase thasparency of hospital reporting. Hospitals musthsitibdata for certain required quality
measures—which for inpatients includes the CAMPS spital Survey—in order to receive the full markasket increase to their
reimbursement payment rates from CMS. While hokpédicipation is voluntary, hospitals that fail submit this survey data will incur a
reduction of two percentage points in the inpatiaatket basket update amount for the following faliiscal year. We have received certified
vendor designation and will continue to offer CAHPISospital Survey services. In addition, we are rifted vendor approved to offer
CAHPS® Home Health Care Survey used to measurexfferiences of people receiving home health cama fkedicare-certified home health
agencies. We also offer CAHPS Clinician and Group/8y used to measure patient experiences withitheate providers and staff in
doctor’s offices.
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Medicare and Medicaid Electronic Health Records fHncentive Program:The Medicare and Medicaid EHR Incentive Progranavige
incentive payments to eligible professionals, elgghospitals and critical access hospitals (CA&sshhey adopt, implement, upgrade or
demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR tecbgyl By putting into action and meaningfully usiwg EHR system, providers will reap
benefits beyond financial incentivesueh as reduction in errors, availability of recoathd data, reminders and alerts, clinical decisigaport
and e-prescribing/refill automation.

Allied Disciplines Various allied health professionals are requireditain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be rebtgracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar, all or a portion of which can be
fulfilled online. These requirements vary by staibel depend on the classification of the employee.

Other Continuing EducatioWe are also an accredited provider of continuingcation and continuing pharmacy education by theo8isition
of Surgical Technologists, Inc. (AST) and the Aclitation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) pexgtively.

Regulation of Educational Program Sponsorship and @port

The Office of Inspector General (OIG) issued Coamtie Program Guidance for Pharmaceutical Manufactum April 2003 and issued
Compliance Program Guidance for the Durable Medicplipment, Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supply stiguin July 1999 (collectively, the
Guidelines). These documents include guidelinegtadlto continuing educational activities suppoligghharmaceutical and medical device
companies. The Guidelines already have and maynuanto affect the type and extent of commerciglsut we receive for our continuing
education activities. The trade associations ferpharmaceutical and medical device industries fPhlRnd AdvaMed, respectively) have a
promulgated their own codes of ethics. In Janu@892the PhRMA code of ethics was updated, and Meéxbmade changes to its code of
ethics that became effective in July 2009. Theseagas placed further restrictions on the interastizetween industry and health care
professionals. The AMA has established its own aafdethics regarding Gifts to Physicians from Intyso provide standards of conduct for
the medical profession. The Company follows thesw@nd guidelines provided by ACCME, ANCC, and ptfmatinuing education accreditil
bodies to ensure that its continuing education rEnogning is free from commercial bias and consistétit the Guidelines.

In March 2010, ACA became law. ACA requires mantufears of drugs, biological devices and medicaptiep covered by Medicare,
Medicaid, or the Children’s Health Insurance Progta annually report to HHS payments or transférgatue, including educational
programs, given by such manufacturers to physiciaasteaching hospitals, with limited exceptions.F2bruary 8, 2013, CMS issued a final
rule implementing this provision of ACA. Manufactus will be required to report the physician’s natnesiness address and national provide
identifier as well as other information includirtgetvalue, date, form and nature of what is offekdainufacturers subject to the rule are reqt

to begin collecting information beginning AugusD13, with the first reporting deadline set foreta31, 2014. CMS will release the 2013
reported data on a public website by Septembe2@D4. Manufacturers that do not meet the repodbigations will be subject to significant
monetary penalties.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and theFederal Trade Commission (FTC)

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actiosragulatory policies or those that the FDA or i€ may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability twvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€gGlate the form, content and dissemination loéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptivug and medical device advertising, prepareabigr, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates ovectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,qalediévice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Flpfraved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims ngiraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information theimotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseuvices is subject to the full array of the FDAl &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisgpship links and any educational programs ttckt ilsdependent editorial control that we
may present with our services could be subjectié Br FTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTCqaahe principal burden of complian
with advertising and promotional regulations on dkeertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any regjed information presented with our
services violates FDA or FTC regulations, they rree regulatory action against us or the advertssponsor of that information. In
addition, the FDA may adopt new regulatory polidiegt more tightly regulate the format and cont#frgromotional information on the
Internet.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third pariesnse agreements with consultants, vendorscastbmers; and use reasonable measures
designed to control access to our software, doctatien and other proprietary information. We owddeal trademark and service mark
registrations for the marks “HEALTHSTREAM”, “HOSPAL DIRECT”, “OR PROTOCOL”, “INSIGHT INTO ACTION”, “QUALITY
CHECK”, “SIMCENTER” and “SIMSTORE.” We also have t@lined registration of the “HEALTHSTREAM" mark iretain other countries.
Applications for several trademarks are currendpging. However, there can be no assurance thatilhiee successful in obtaining
registration of other trademarks for which we hapelied.
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The courseware that we license to our customets\isloped through a combination of license agre¢sneith publishers and authors,
assignments and work-for-hire arrangements with tharties, and development by employees. We requiblishers, authors and other third
parties to represent and warrant that their corteas not infringe on or misappropriate any thigdtyp intellectual property rights and that they
have the right to provide their content and hav&iokd all third-party consents necessary to d@sw.publishers, authors and other third
parties also agree to indemnify us against celi@ility we might sustain due to the content thpegvide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have ingfeid its patents or other intellectual property,may be required to redesign our products or
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. In &ddj we license technologies from third partiesifi@orporation into our services. Royalty ¢
licensing agreements with these third parties ntybe available on terms acceptable to us, iflafdditionally, the steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property and proprietaghts may not be adequate. Third parties may igéiar misappropriate our intellectual
property. Competitors may also independently dgvédghnologies that are substantially equivalersugerior to the technologies we employ
in our products or services. If we fail to protear proprietary rights adequately, our competitarsld offer similar services, potentially
significantly harming our competitive position agkelcreasing our revenues.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, includingal reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#&0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materialilevith the SEC at the SEC’s Public ReferenceRat 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on ¢iperation of the Public Reference Room by callmg$EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
Company is an electronic filer and the SEC mairstaim Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that cimstéhe reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information filed electrolhjc®ur website address is www.healthstream.coeas® note that our website address is
provided as an inactive textual reference only.iéke available free of charge through our webgite annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form &id all amendments to those reports as soon amiaday practicable after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEThe information provided on our website is not mdrthis report, and is therefore not
incorporated by reference unless such informasartherwise specifically referenced elsewhere imréport.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2012, we employed 496 full-teme 91 part-time persons, including approximat@9 @émployees in our interviewing
center. Our success will depend in large part uporability to attract and retain qualified emplegeWe face competition in this regard from
other companies, but we believe that we maintaodgelations with our employees. We are not sulifgany collective bargaining
agreements.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businespeazience of each of the executive officers of tlen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve aptbasure of the Board of Directors. The followiaple sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age  Position

Robert A. Frist, Jr 45  Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmathef Board of Director
Jeffrey S. Doste 48  Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Offi

Gerard M. Hayden, J 58 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Arthur E. Newmar 64 Executive Vice Presidel

J. Edward Pearsc 5C Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Off

Michael Sous: 44  Senior Vice Presider

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, hexwad as our chief executive officer and chairmiatihe board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist is the companyisfcbperating decision maker. He graduated wittaahlor of Science in business with
concentrations in finance, economics and marketimm Trinity University.

Jeffrey S. Doster joined the Company in May 2008exsor vice president and chief technology offiégom November 2006 to May 2008, he
served as principal at The Altus Group LLC, a bes@consulting company. He earned undergraduateateimn both Economics and Business
Administration from Towson University, as well adlaster of Business Administration from Loyola @gjé, in Maryland.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jr. joined the Company as sefierpresident and chief financial officer in Ma@(B. From April 2007 to May 2008, he
served as executive vice president and chief filmhodficer of MedAvant Healthcare Solutions, a lieeare transaction processing company.
He earned a Bachelor of Arts from the UniversityNofre Dame and a Master of Science from Northeadlaiversity. Mr. Hayden served on
the Company’s Board of Directors and was a memb#reoAudit Committee from September 2006 to Map&0
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Arthur E. Newman joined the Company in January 2@0@ is currently our Executive Vice Presideneviyusly he served as our chief
financial officer and senior vice president fronrmdary 2000 to March 2006. He holds a Bachelor adr&® in chemistry from the University
Miami and a Master of Business Administration frRatgers University.

J. Edward Pearson joined the Company in June 2086éror vice president, responsible for our suargyresearch business and was named
president of HealthStream Research™ during 200 Cdmelf Operating Officer in 2011. He earned a Bémhef Business Administration in
accounting from Middle Tennessee State University.

Michael Sousa joined the company in October 2064 veas promoted to senior vice president in JanRaiy). He previously served as vice
president for the Company, with responsibilitiesdar strategic accounts program. He earned a BarcbeScience degree from Boston
College and a Master of Business Administratiomfi®oston University.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrlizlow and elsewhere in this document are timeipgal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weylbacome subject to additional risks that are motently known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be maligredversely affected by any of the following résind by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to aithe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks Related to Our Business Model
We may be unable to effectively execute our grostifategy which could have an adverse effect on business and competitive position in
the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our niati@e and presence through sales to new custoadeliional sales to existing customers,
introductions of new products and services, anchtaaiing strong relationships with our existing tousers. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in executing our growth strategy include:

. expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl @leveloping new products or services and integgatiich new products or services intc
our existing organizatior

. inability to leverage our operational and finanagstems sufficiently to support our grow

. inability to generate sufficient revenue from nemwqucts to offset investment cos

. inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti

. inability to maintain our existing customer relatships;

. increased competition from new and existing contesj

. lengthy sales cycles, or customers delaying pumafatecisions due to economic conditio

. reduced spending within the training, informatior @&ducation departments of hospitals within otgegamarket; an

. failure of the market for training, information aaducation in the healthcare industry to grow swfficient size or at a sufficient ra

If any of these risks are realized, our businesd,air competitive position in the industry, coaldfer.

We may be unable to effectively identify, completentegrate the operations of future acquisitiongint ventures, collaborative
arrangements or other growth investments.

As part of our growth strategy, we actively revipossible acquisitions, joint ventures, collabomativrangements or growth investments that
complement or enhance our business. We may ndtlbéaidentify, complete or integrate the openadiof future acquisitions, joint ventures,
collaborative arrangements or other growth investsidn addition, if we finance acquisitions, jougntures, collaborative arrangements or
other growth initiatives by issuing equity secedti our existing shareholders may be diluted wbakd affect the market price of our stock.
As a result, if we fail to properly evaluate anédexte acquisitions and investments, our businesppcts may be seriously harmed. Some of
the risks that we may encounter in implementingamquisition, joint venture, collaborative arrangagmor growth investment strategies
include:

. expenses, delays or difficulties in identifying dantkgrating acquired companies or joint venturerapions, collaborative arrangement
other growth investments into our organizati

. inability to retain personnel associated with asijiains, joint ventures, collaborative arrangemeantsther growth investment
. diversion of manageme’'s attention from other initiatives and/or ~to-day operations to effectively execute our growthtsgy; anc

. inability to generate sufficient revenue, profitdacash flow from acquisitions, joint ventures laobrative arrangements or other growth
investments to offset our investment co
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Our ability to accurately forecast revenue for caim products and services may be hindered by custoatheduling.

As revenues from our subscription business contioulcrease, a larger portion of our revenues lvalpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations. KralthStream Research products and serviceypgioally contracted by healthcare
organizations for multi-year terms, but the frequersample size, and timing of survey cycles cay fram quarter to quarter and year to year
The contract structure for some Research prodings gustomers latitude about when to initiateraesyy which can affect quarterly or annual
revenue forecasts. Also, other project-based ptsdaach as certain content development, and (miofes services, are subject to the
customers’ involvement in the provision of the prodor service. The timing and magnitude of thesgept-based product and service
contracts may vary widely from quarter to quarted gear to year, and thus may affect our abilitpd¢ourately forecast quarterly and annual
financial performance.

Our ability to accurately forecast revenue may biéeated by lengthy and widely varying sales cycles.

The period from our initial contact with a potehttastomer and their first purchase of our solutigrically ranges from three to nine months,
and in some cases has extended much further. Tilge ia the sales cycle can be impacted by multggd#ors, including an increasing trend
towards more formal request for proposal proceasdamnore competition within our industry, as walifarmal budget timelines which impact
timing of purchases by target customers. New prizdiend to have a longer and more unpredictablen ramp period. As a result of these
factors, we have only limited ability to forecalsettiming and type of initial sales. This, in tummakes it more difficult to forecast quarterly and
annual financial performance.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive pinsi against current and potential competitors, espally those with significantly greate
financial, technical, marketing, or other resource

Several of our competitors and many potential cditgye have longer operating histories and sigaifity greater financial, technical,
marketing, or other resources than we do. We erteodirect competition from both large and smakaming companies and other companie
focused on training and talent management in tiadétheare industry. We also face competition frongda survey and research companies.
Given the profile and growth of the healthcare stdpand the growing need for education, traingighulation, research, and information, it is
likely that additional competitors will emerge. Welieve we maintain a competitive advantage agamstompetitors by offering a
comprehensive array of products and services; hexyewur lack of market diversification resultingrin our concentration on the healthcare
industry may make us susceptible to losing markatesto our competitors who also offer a compleleaening solution to a cross-section of
industries. These companies may be able to respane quickly than we can to new or changing opputies, technologies, standards or
customer requirements. Further, most of our cust@geeements are for terms ranging from one to dodiive years, with no obligation to
renew. The short terms of these agreements mayeeoadtomers to more easily shift to one of our petitors.

The failure to maintain and strengthen our relatiahips with strategic partners or significant changén the terms of the agreements we
have with them may have an adverse impact on ouitigtto successfully market our products and seses.

We have entered into contracts with other compainetiding content, technology, and retail chanregidors. Our ability to increase the sales
of our products and services depends in part upaintaining and strengthening relationships withstheurrent and future strategic partners.
Most of these contracts are on a rextiusive basis. Certain strategic partners magr giffoducts and services from multiple distinct pamies
including, in some instances, products or serwdeish may compete with our products and servicesedver, under contracts with some of
our strategic partners, we may be bound by pravistbat restrict our ability to market and sell purducts and services to certain potential
customers. The success of these contractual arreerde will depend in part upon the strategic pasir@vn competitive, marketing, and
strategic considerations, including the relativeaadages of using alternative products being d@esland marketed by them or our
competitors.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to mairgaid strengthen our relationships with strategitners, that we will be successful in
effectively integrating such partners’ products #exhnology into our own, or that such relationshipll be successful in generating additional
revenue. If any of these strategic partners araagessful in their involvement with our productslarvices, or seek to amend the financial o
other terms of the contracts we have with themwilleneed to broaden our efforts to increase fooughe types of services and solutions they
sell and alter our development, integration, andistribution strategies, which may divert our plad efforts and resources from other proj

Lastly, we could be subject to claims and liabjlag a result of the activities, products, or sEwiof these strategic partners. Even if these
claims do not result in liability to us, investigag and defending these claims could be expensive;consuming and result in suspension of
certain offerings to our clients and/or adverselipit that could harm our business.

We may not be able to retain proper distributiomghits from our content partners, and this could affieprojected growth in courseware
subscription revenue

Most of our agreements with content providers ararfitial terms of two to three years. The conteattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneanlys if we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could result reduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute, causing decreased revenuest dasir agreements with our content partners are
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non-exclusive, and our competitors offer, or coofi@r, training and continuing education contertttis similar to or the same as ours. If
publishers and authors, including our current aonpartners, offer information to users or our cetitprs on more favorable terms than those
offered to us, or increase our license fees, ompstitive position and our profit margins and pexsg could be harmed. In addition, the fail
by our content partners to deliver high-quality teon and to revise their content in response to demand and evolving healthcare advances
and trends could result in customer dissatisfaaiwth inhibit our ability to attract and retain sctiisers of our courseware offerings.

We may not be able to develop new products andisesy or enhancements to our existing products aaavices, or be able to achieve
widespread acceptance of new products, servicdgsatures, or keep pace with technological developise

Our growth strategy depends in part on our abititgenerate revenue growth through sales to netermess as well as increasing sales of
additional courseware subscriptions and other prisdand services to existing customers. Our ideatibn of additional features, content,
products and services may not result in timely tipraent of complementary products. In addition,shecess of certain new products and
services may be dependent on continued growthrilbase of Internet-based customers and we arebi®t@accurately predict the volume or
speed with which old and new customers will adeghsnew products and services. Because healthredgmenty continues to change and evc
we may be unable to accurately predict and devedop products, features, content and other prodaasddress the needs of the healthcare
industry. Further, the new products, services arithecements we develop may introduce significafeati® into or otherwise negatively imp
our core software platforms. While all new produantsl services are subject to testing and qualityrob all software and software-based
services are subject to errors and malfunctionselfelease new products, services and/or enhamtenveéh bugs, defects or errors or that
cause bugs, defects or errors in existing proditatsuld result in lost revenues, reduced abtlityneet contractual obligations and would be
detrimental to our business and reputation. If pesducts, features, or content are not acceptéategrated by new or existing customers, we
may not be able to recover the cost of this devakag and our financial performance will be harm@dntinued growth of our Internet-based
customer population is dependent on our abilitgdntinue to provide relevant products and senvicestimely manner. The success of our
business will depend on our ability to continuevidong our products and services as well as eningnoiir courseware, product and service
offerings that address the needs of healthcarenagfgons.

We may be unable to continue to license our thirarfy software, on which a portion of our product drservice offerings rely, or we may
experience errors in this software, which could ire@ase our costs and decrease our revenue.

We use technology components in some of our predhet have been licensed from third parties. [euiaenses to these technologies may
be available to us on commercially reasonable teomat all. The loss of or inability to obtain m@aintain any of these licenses could result in
delays in the introduction of new products and isesvor could force us to discontinue offering jmor$ of our learning management or survey
and research solutions until equivalent technoldfggyailable, is identified, licensed and integ@@t The operation of our products would be
impaired if errors occur in third party technologlycontent that we incorporate, and we may incditashal costs to repair or replace the
defective technology or content. It may be difftdolr us to correct any errors in third party protiubecause the products are not within our
control. Accordingly, our revenue could decreass @ur costs could increase in the event of anyreirothis technology. Furthermore, we r
become subject to legal claims related to licerieelnology based on product liability, infringemehintellectual property or other legal
theories.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbin a relatively small number of customel

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuemfeorelatively small number of customers. A terrtioraof our agreements with any of our
significant customers or a failure of these custenie renew their contracts on favorable termsta@ill, could have a material adverse effec
our business.

A significant portion of our business is subject tenewal each year. Therefore, renewals have a gigant impact on our revenue an
operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, approxima@8ty of our net revenue was derived from our Irgetrased subscription products. Our
Internetbased HLC customers have no obligation to renew shibscriptions for our products or services atiterexpiration of the subscripti
agreement, and in fact, some customers have eleotead renew their subscription. In addition, customers may renew at a lower pricing or
activity level. During the year ended DecemberZ11,2, we renewed 99.5% of the annual HLC contraktesup for renewal and 98.7% of the
subscribers which were up for renewal. Our custefimenewal rates may decline or fluctuate as alre$a number of factors, including but
not limited to their dissatisfaction with our sex®j pricing or competitive product offerings. If wee unable to renew a substantial portion of
the contracts that are up for renewal or maintainpoicing, our revenue could be adversely affectddch would have a material adverse
affect on our results of operations and financaifion. HealthStream Research product and secantacts typically range from one to three
years in length, and customers are not obligatedrtew their contract with us after their contrxpires. If our customers do not renew ti
arrangements for our services, or if their actilétyels decline, our revenue may decline and osmess will suffer.
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We may be unable to accurately predict the timiffg@venue recognition from sales activity as itaften dependent on achieving certain
events or performance milestones, and this inalilibuld impact our operating results.

Our ability to recognize revenue is dependent wgmeral factors including the transfer of custoseific information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impatcustomers on our Internet-based learning dadttmanagement platform. Accordingly,
if customers do not provide us with the specifigdimation in a timely manner, our ability to reoie revenue will be delayed, which could
adversely impact our operating results. In addjtmmpletion and acceptance by our customers afldped content and courseware must be
achieved, survey responses must be received anldtadh, and utilization of courseware is requiredannection with subscription Internet-
based learning and talent management productsftr kecognize revenue.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdior products and services over the term of the suription period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacbur operating results.

We recognize approximately 70% of our revenue fomstomers monthly over the terms of their subsioripagreements, which have initial
contract terms ranging from one to four or fivengeds a result, much of the revenue we reporathejuarter is related to subscription
agreements entered into during previous quartenss€qjuently, a decline in new or renewed subsoriggreements in any one quarter will
necessarily be fully reflected in the revenue it tiuarter and will negatively affect our revenuduture quarters. In addition, we may be
unable to adjust our cost structure to reflect taduced revenue. Accordingly, the effect of sigaifit downturns in sales and market
acceptance of our products and services may nfllgeeflected in our results of operations uffititure periods. Additionally, our subscription
model also makes it difficult for us to rapidly rease our revenue through additional sales in anpg, as revenue from new customers must
be recognized over the applicable subscription t&imally, the majority of costs associated withr eales cycles are incurred up front before
revenue recognition commences, and therefore peabdtrong sales performance may increase ous aosite near term negatively affecting
our financial performance.

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgeciives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms, or at all

We expect our current cash and investment resemeslving credit facility, and cash flows from op&ons to be sufficient to meet our cash
requirements through at least 2013. However, we megg to raise additional funds in order to:

. develop new, or enhance existing, services or pisg

. respond to competitive pressur

. finance working capital requiremen

. acquire complementary businesses, technology, ebatgroducts; o
. otherwise effectively execute our growth strate

At December 31, 2012, we had approximately $93I8amiin cash, cash equivalents, and marketablaréges. We also have up to

$20.0 million of availability under a revolving dlié facility, subject to certain covenants, whictpies in July 2014. We expect to incur
between $9.0 and $10.0 million of capital expemn@isy software development and content purchasésgi2013. We continue to actively
review possible business acquisitions that wouldgement or enhance our products and services. ¥enaot have adequate cash and
investments or availability under our revolvingditdacility to consummate one or more of theseussitions. The capital markets have been
experiencing extreme volatility and disruption, amgl cannot assure you that if we need additiomanfting that it will be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds areavailable or are not available on acceptablasepur ability to fund expansion, take
advantage of available opportunities, develop taere services or products or otherwise respondrtpetitive pressures would be
significantly limited. If we raise additional fundly issuing equity or convertible debt securitteg, percentage ownership of our existing
shareholders may be reduced.

We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgible assets recorded on our balance sheet that im@gubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2012, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $29.3 million and identifiable intarge assets of $8.8 million. There are
inherent uncertainties in the estimates, judgmantsassumptions used in assessing recoverabilggadwill and intangible assets. Economic,
legal, regulatory, competitive, reputational, cantual, and other factors could result in futurelides in the operating results of our business
units or market value declines that do not supiharicarrying value of goodwill and identifiableangible assets. If the value of our goodwill
and/or intangible assets is impaired, accountitgsrrequire us to reduce their carrying value apbrt an impairment charge, which would
reduce our reported assets and earnings for thedgarwhich an impairment is recognized.
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The current uncertain economic environment may haaeegative impact on our customers and us whiclilcbhave a significant impact o
our revenue, operating results and financial conidib.

It is difficult to predict the full magnitude andichtion of the current uncertain economic environnaand its related impact on our customers,
suppliers and our company. For example, our customay experience fluctuations or declines in thasiness and as a consequence, some
customers may choose to invest less in informagchnology assets for their business which, in,tconld have an impact on us. The poter
negative effects on us include, but are not limttedeductions in our renewal and revenue groatés, shorter contract terms, pricing
pressures, and delays in payments from customatitrease our accounts receivable resultingdetarioration of our cash flow and working
capital position. We continue to monitor generalramic conditions, however, and depending on tkeritg and/or duration of any economic
downturn, these circumstances could have a matatarse effect on our revenue, results from oermtand financial condition.

We may not be able to demonstrate compliance wihb@&nes-Oxley Section 404 in a timely manner, ahé torrection of any deficiencies
identified during upcoming annual audits may be dtysand could harm our business.

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 requires our manageimeaport on, and requires our independent pulgiioanting firm to attest to, the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting. The rules governing the standardsetenet are complex and will require
significant process review, documentation andngstas well as possible remediation efforts for ieptified deficiencies. This process of
review, documentation, testing and remediation s#lult in increased expenses and require signif@tiention from management and other
internal and external resources. Any material weakas identified during this process may preclsdeam asserting the effectiveness of our
internal controls. This may negatively affect otack price if we cannot effectively remediate thsues identified in a timely manner.

Changes in generally accepted accounting princip(€&AAP) and other accounting regulations and intergiations could require us to delay
recognition of revenue and/or accelerate the rec@gm of expenses, resulting in lower earnings.

While we believe we correctly account for and redrg revenue and expenses, any changes in GAAB@r accounting regulations and
interpretations concerning revenue and expens@néam could decrease our revenue or increasexpenses. Changes to regulations
concerning revenue recognition could require wateEr our current revenue accounting practicescamde us to either defer revenue into a
future period, or to recognize lower revenue iuaent period. Likewise, changes to regulationsceoning expense recognition could require
us to alter our current expense accounting practoel cause us to defer recognition of expenseifiiture period, or to recognize increased
expenses in a current period. Changes to eithentevrecognition or expense recognition accoumtragtices could affect our financial
performance.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition

Our operating margins could be affected if our onigg refinement to pricing models for our productsd services is not accepted by our
customers and the market.

Over the past few years we have implemented sevbaaiges, and we continue to make changes, inrmimgpand our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the nefenlsr customers. We cannot predict whether ouarect pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be acceptedur existing customer base or by prospectigtoruers. If our customers and potential
customers decide not to accept our current or éuypuicing or product and service offerings, it @bbhve a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Related to Operations

We may be unable to adequately develop our systenagesses and support in a manner that will enabteto meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and serviceeesl999 and continue to develop our ability tovle our courseware, learning and ta
management systems, and research systems on dalis@iption and transactional basis over the mietelOur future success will depend on
our ability to effectively develop and maintain théastructure, including procurement of additibhardware and software, and implement the
services, including customer support, necessanyeet the demand for our products and servicesir@bility from time to time to successfu
develop the necessary systems and implement tlessey services on a timely basis has resultedricustomers experiencing some delays,
interruptions and/or errors in their service. Sdelays or interruptions may cause customers torheatissatisfied with our service and move
to competing providers of traditional and onlingining and education services. If this happensrexgnue and reputation could be adversely
affected, which would have a material adverse effecour financial condition.
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Our business operations could be significantly dipted if we lose members of, or fail to integrateir management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependerthe continued services of our management teanoanadbility to retain and motivate
them. The loss of the services of any of our ofiaa senior managers could harm our businesseasay not be able to find suitable
replacements. We do not have employment agreeméhtsiny of our key personnel, other than our chkiefcutive officer, and we do not
maintain any “key person” life insurance policies.

We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficiamimber of qualified employees and, as a result, way not be able to effectively execute
our growth strategy or maintain the quality of owservices.

Our future success will depend on our ability taat, train, motivate, and retain other highlyllski technical, managerial, marketing, custa
support, and survey personnel. Competition foratenpersonnel is intense, especially for develgpeeb designers and sales personnel, ar
may be unable to successfully attract sufficiegthalified personnel. We have in the past and caetio experience difficulty hiring qualified
personnel in a timely manner for these positiotte ool of qualified technical personnel, in parde, is limited in Nashville, Tennessee,
where our headquarters are located. Our intervigwénter is located in Laurel, Maryland, and we magyerience difficulty in maintaining al
recruiting qualified individuals to perform theserdces. We will also need to maintain or incredmesize of our staff to support our
anticipated growth, without compromising the quadif our offerings or customer service. Our indpito locate, hire, integrate and retain
qualified personnel in sufficient numbers may resltiee quality of our services and impair our apild grow.

We may not be able to upgrade our hardware andwafie technology infrastructure quickly enough tofettively meet demand for our
services

We must continue to obtain reasonably priced, cororaléy available hardware and operating softwarevell as continue to enhance our
software to accommodate the increased use of atfoph and increased courseware in our library.ifdees about hardware and software
enhancements are based in part on estimated ftsexfake growth in demand for our services. Th@agh in demand for our services is
difficult to forecast and the potential audiencedar services is widespread and dynamic. If weuaigble to increase the data storage and
processing capacity of our systems at least ag$attte growth in demand, our customers may enepdetays or disruptions in their service.
Unscheduled downtime could harm our business asulcguld discourage current and potential custofnens using or continuing to use our
services and reduce future revenue.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asodftware may fail.

An unexpected event including but not limited tielecommunications failure, fire, earthquake, dreotcatastrophic loss at our Internet service
providers’ facilities or at our on-site data fatsilcould cause the loss of critical data and preusrfrom offering our products and services for
an unknown period of time. System downtime coulgatieely affect our reputation and ability to salir products and services and may ex
us to significant thirgsarty claims. Our business interruption insuraneg mot adequately compensate us for losses thabowy. In additior
we rely on third parties to securely store our seth data, house our web server and network sysasmghgonnect us to the Internet. While our
service providers have planned for certain contieges, the failure by any of these third partiepriovide these services satisfactorily and our
inability to find suitable replacements would impaiir ability to access archives and operate ostesys and software.

We may lose users and lose revenue if our securigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protedbousr or personal information are ineffective, waynose users of our services, which could
reduce our revenue, tarnish our reputation, angestibs to significant liability. We rely on sedyrand authentication technology licensed f
third parties. With this technology, we performlrgme credit card authorization and verificati@s, well as the encryption of other selected
secure customer data. We cannot predict whethse thecurity measures could be circumvented by eelanblogical developments. Further,
the audit processes and controls used within adymtion platforms may not be sufficient to ideyptind prevent errors or deliberate misus
addition, our software, databases and servers maylperable to computer viruses, physical or edeit attacks and similar disruptions. We
may need to spend significant resources to praigainst security breaches or to alleviate problemused by any breaches. We cannot assure
that we can prevent all security breaches.

We may experience errors in our software produdtattadminister and report on hospital performancand these errors could result in
action taken against us that could harm our busirses

Certain survey data collected and reported byuch as the survey data included as part of our CAHRospital survey is used by CMS to
determine, in part, the amount of reimbursementrpts to hospitals, and any errors in data colacgurvey sampling, or statistical report
could result in reduced reimbursements to our lakpiistomers if we are unable to correct thessrgrand this could, in turn, result in
litigation against us. Further, this survey datsoréed to CMS is then published by CMS to the galneublic, and any errors we experience
result in incorrect scoring on our hospital customay result in damage to that hospital’s reputatand the hospital may in turn bring
litigation against us. We may be required to indéynagainst such claims, and defending againstsarch claims could be costly, time
consuming and could negatively affect our business.
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Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may subject us to liability equire us to change the way we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. Evolving areas of law that are rat#\to our business include privacy and
security laws, proposed encryption laws, contegtil@ion, information security accountability regtibn, and sales and use tax laws and
regulations and attempts to regulate activitiegheninternet. Because of this rapidly evolving andertain regulatory environment, we cannot
predict how these laws and regulations might affectbusiness. These uncertainties make it diffimuénsure compliance with the laws and
regulations governing or impacting our businesesehlaws and regulations could harm us by subgeasrto liability or forcing us to change
how we do business. In addition, certain laws mentteat our customers contractually require ustdaat the privacy and security of certain
personal and health related information. If we faiabide by these required contractual provisions customers may terminate their contracts
with us. In addition, ARRA expanded the applicatidrcertain of the HIPAA privacy and security regtibns to apply directly to business
associates including us. Violations of HIPAA priyaand security regulations may result in civil amoinal penalties. Further, ARRA has
increased these penalties and strengthened otftecement provisions of HIPAA, which may resultimcreased enforcement activity. HHS
has published a final rule that implements manthe$e ARRA provisions that become effective Mar6h2013. The final rule will likely
require amendments to existing agreements wittftoestomers and subcontractors by September 23, 28&8pt that existing business
associate agreements may qualify for an extendegbliance date of September 23, 2014.

We may not be able to maintain our certification tonduct CMS mandated surveys, and this could adedr affect our business.

Our survey product offerings include providing synservices to assist customers in their compliavite CMS regulations. We are currently
designated by CMS as a certified vendor to offeHPS® Hospital Surveys and CAHPSlome Health Care Surveys, including data collec
and submission services. If we are unable to maiti@se certifications, or secure certificatioosfiiture CMS mandated surveys, we would
not be able to administer these survey instrumf@ntsur customers and our business may suffer.

Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiting education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiiadting and continuing education for healthcarafgssionals and other healthcare worker:
resulting from regulations of state and federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionahigtions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanadnd training for the healthcare industry cowddiour business. In addition, a portion of
our business with pharmaceutical and medical dawiaeufacturers and hospitals is predicated on bilityato maintain accreditation status
with organizations such as the ACCME, ANCC, and ECPhe failure to maintain status as an accredgitestider could have a detrimental
effect on our business.

We may be liable to third parties for content thiatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contenbur online library if the text, graphics, softwarr other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual progeitghts, our content partners violate their coctiwal obligations to others by providing con

to our library, or the content does not confornatcepted standards of care in the healthcare giofesNe attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneostnership of the rights to distribute as well as élecurac

of their content. We also take necessary measomeview this content ourselves. Although our agreets with our content partners in most
instances contain provisions providing for indenwmaifion by the content providers in the event aiticurate content, our content partners may
not have the financial resources to meet this akibg. Alleged liability could harm our businessdamaging our reputation, requiring us to
incur legal costs in defense, exposing us to awafrdamages and costs, and diverting managemdteigian away from our business.

Protection of certain intellectual property may l#fficult and costly, and we may be unable to prot®ur intellectual property

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual gmietary rights, a third party could, without autization, copy or otherwise misappropriate our
content, information from our databases, or othtsllectual property. Our agreements with employeessultants and others who participate
in development activities could be breached anditr@sour trade secrets becoming known, or owtdrsecrets and other intellectual property
could be independently developed by competitors.nvilg not have adequate remedies for such breaclpestections against such competitor
developments. In addition, the laws of some foreiguntries do not protect our proprietary rightsite same extent as the laws of the United
States, and effective intellectual property protectay not be available in those jurisdictions. derently own several applications and
registrations for trademarks and domain namesaruthited States and other countries as well aaioesbmmon law trademarks and service
marks. The current system for registering, allogptind managing domain names has been the subjgiaiion and proposed regulatory
reform. Additionally, legislative proposals haveehenade by the federal government that would affimoéd protection to owners of database:
of information, such as stock quotes. This protectf databases already exists in the EuropeannUnio

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized piniginge upon or misappropriate our intellectpaperty, proprietary systems, content,
platform, services or other information. Our effotd protect our intellectual property through cagiyt, trademarks and other controls may no
be adequate. For instance, we may not be abletveserademark or service mark registrations fork&ién the United States or in foreign
countries, or to secure patents for our proprieproglucts and services, and even if we are suadésgibtaining patent and/or trademark
registrations, these registrations may be opposétalidated by a third party.

There has been substantial litigation in the compaihd online industries regarding intellectualgemy assets, particularly patents. Third
parties may claim infringement by us with respeaturrent and future products, trademarks or giheprietary rights, and we mi



counterclaim against such third parties in sucioast Any such claims or counterclaims could besticonsuming, result in
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costly litigation, divert management’s attentioause product release delays, require us to redesigproducts or require us to enter into
royalty or licensing agreements, any of which ccdudde a material adverse effect upon our busifi@ssicial condition and operating results.
Such royalty and licensing agreements may not béable on terms acceptable to us, if at all.

We may be liable for infringing the intellectual piperty rights of others.

Our competitors may develop similar intellectuaperty, duplicate our products and/or serviceslesign around any patents or other
intellectual property rights we hold. In the futulidgation may be necessary to enforce our intdlial property rights or to determine the
validity and scope of the patents, intellectualpamy or other proprietary rights of third partiadjich could be time consuming and costly and
have an adverse effect on our business and firlasandition. Intellectual property infringement ictes could be made against us, especially a
the number of our competitors grows. These clagsn if not meritorious, could be expensive anédivur attention from operating our
company and result in a temporary inability to theeintellectual property subject to such claimadidition, if we and/or our affiliates and
customers become liable to third parties for irgiiry their intellectual property rights, we could tequired to pay a substantial damage awart
and develop comparable non-infringing intellectualperty, to obtain a license, or to cease progidire content or services that contain the
infringing intellectual property. We may be unatdedevelop non-infringing intellectual propertyaistain a license on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 61,000 squatefahis location expires in April 2017. T
lease provides for a twgear renewal option with rates increasing durirggrnewal period. We are leasing approximatelyd®gjuare feet (
office space in Laurel, Maryland. The lease expindglarch 2014 and provides for a two-year renesypdion. We are leasing approximately
6,000 square feet of office space in Brentwood nieéssee, and the lease expires in October 2015r&\&s leasing approximately 3,000
square feet of office space in Austin, Texas, &edease expires in December 2013.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

The following table sets forth, for each quartettaf two most recent years, the high and low galess per share of our common stock as
reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market untherticker symbol HSTM:

Common Stock Price

2012 2011
High Low High Low
First Quarter $24.0¢ $16.4¢ $ 8.1: $ 6.7¢€
Second Quarte 26.2% 20.7: 13.27 7.5t
Third Quartel 30.47 23.2i 14.37 10.3:
Fourth Quarte 30.5: 22.2¢ 18.8( 11.4%

As of February 21, 2013, there were 109 registbmtders and 6,497 beneficial holders of our comsstonk. Because many of such shares ar
held by brokers and other institutions on behallwreholders, we are unable to estimate thertataber of shareholders represented by thes
record holders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagasgh dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings for use indperation of our business.

See the table labeled “Securities Authorized fsu#mce Under Equity Compensation Plans” to be gwdan the 2013 Proxy Statement,
incorporated by reference in Part I, Item 12k§tAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedgler return on our common stock since Decembg@Q7, with the cumulative total
return of companies on the NASDAQ Composite Indack the NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index daliersame period (assuming
the investment of $100 in our common stock, the RA® Composite Index and the NASDAQ Computer & DRtacessing Index on
December 31, 2007 (for our stock and the indiced)rainvestment of all dividends).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN @
Among HealthStream, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Inde
And The NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index
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(1) $100 invested on 12/31/2007 in stock or ir-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeatliag December 3!

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
None.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
None.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statement of income and balance datefor the past five years are derived from auwlitad consolidated financial statements.
You should read the following selected financiabda conjunction with our consolidated financittements and the notes to those statemer
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations” locatezkalhere in this report.

HealthStream acquired DCI on June 29, 2012 and &y.dh October 19, 2012. Both DCI and Sy.Med'’s tesafl operations are included
within our consolidated statement of income effextiune 30, 2012 and October 20, 2012, respectiRelyenues may be subject to
fluctuations as discussed further in “Managemenis&ussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults of Operations” located
elsewhere in this report. During 2012, 2011, anti®2@ve recorded a tax provision of approximately@3$8illion, $4.4 million and $2.9 millior
respectively. During 2009 and 2008 we recognizeatigoes of our deferred tax assets through the salef the valuation allowance, resulting
in deferred income tax benefits of approximatelyl®8illion and $0.4 million, respectively. As a u#tof these factors, the annual results
presented below are not comparable. The operagggts for any single year are not necessarilycatdie of the results to be expected in the
future.

Year Ended December 31
(in thousands, except per share data)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne¢ $103,73. $ 82,06¢ $65,75¢ $57,39¢ $51,60(
Total operating costs and expen 90,27 70,72¢ 58,69¢ 52,27t 49,11¢
Income from operation 13,45¢ 11,33¢ 7,05¢ 5,122 2,482
Net income $ 764t $ 6,944 $ 4,15/ $1397. $ 2,85¢
Net income per sha~ basic $ 02¢ $ 031 $ 01¢ $ 06 $ 0.12
Net income per sha~ diluted $ 028 $ 02¢ $ 018 $ 064 $ 0.1¢
Weighted average shares of common stock outstar basic 26,12¢ 22,44t 21,76" 21,45¢ 21,707
Weighted average shares of common stock outstar diluted 27,507 23,74¢ 22,48¢ 21,83¢ 22,20
BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivale $ 41,368 $ 76,90 $17,86¢ $12,28° $ 4,10
Marketable securitie- short and long terr 51,95: 12,54¢ 5,70: — —
Goodwill and intangible asse 38,10« 23,10« 23,99: 24,93¢ 25,88¢
Working capital 83,25¢ 78,63: 19,52¢ 10,71« 1,14¢
Total asset 174,52¢ 154,23 82,01: 71,00: 52,79:
Deferred revenu 23,14¢ 22,75¢ 16,74( 12,23¢ 10,20z
Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current po — — — 4 32C
Shareholder equity 132,19t 120,91! 56,79 51,82 36,76:

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoeltehd in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidate@faial Statements and related notes thereto indlatewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamisi@aresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i floesward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mport.

OVERVIEW

We provide Internet-based learning, talent manage@red research solutions for healthcare orgawiaati-all designed to assess and develog
the people that deliver patient care which, in teupports the improvement of business and climagdomes. Our learning and talent
management products are used by healthcare orjanz# meet a broad range of their training,ifteation, assessment and development
needs, while our research products provide ouoousts information about patients’ experiences, Wavde engagement, physician relations,
and community perceptions of their services. H&itam’s customers include healthcare organizatgmermaceutical and medical device
companies, and other participants in the healthicalestry. Our customer base includes approxim&g90 healthcare organizations
(predominately acute-care facilities) througholibél states.
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Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012appreximately $103.7 million compared to $82.1 iillfor the year ended December
2011, an increase of 26.4%. Operating income isetdy 18.7% to $13.5 million for 2012, compare@1&.3 million for 2011. Net income
increased by 10.1% to $7.6 million for 2012, coneglato $6.9 million for 2011. Earnings per sharefERas $0.28 per share (diluted) for 2
compared to $0.29 per share (diluted) for 2011 eRees from HealthStream Learning & Talent Managémrmw by 35.3%, or $20.5 million,
and revenues from HealthStream Research grew By,40$1.2 million. We had approximately 3.1 miflioontracted subscribers, of which
approximately 2.94 million were fully implementegbscribers on our Internet-based HLC platform atddeber 31, 2012. During 2012, we
renewed approximately 683,000 subscribers, reptiagea 98.7% renewal rate for the subscribers upefoewal, and a 99.5% renewal rate
based on the annual contract value up for renédgahf December 31, 2012 our cash and investmeanbak approximated $93.3 million, and
we maintained full availability under our $20.0 loih revolving credit facility.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ileguand talent management products and coursewhbeedgptions based on a per person
subscription basis, and in some cases on a peiskdeasis. Our fees are based on the size ofcliéida’ or organizations’ employee user
population and the service offerings to which tealscribe. Revenue is recognized ratably overaghgce period of the underlying contract.
Revenues associated with online training are reézedgrover the term of the subscription period cgrathe historical usage period, if usage
typically differs from the subscription period. Adther service revenues are recognized as thedetatrvices are performed or products are
delivered.

Revenues derived from the license of installedwsf products, associated with the Sy.Med prodactsrecognized upon shipment or
installation of the software. Software support amantenance revenues are recognized ratably ogdgetm of the related agreement.

Revenues from survey and research services argmizedl when survey results are delivered to custewia either Internet-based reporting
throughout the survey period or by providing fisafvey results once all services are completegAiitant portion of revenues for survey and
reporting services that are provided through treeaidnternetbased reporting methodologies are recognized ukmgroportional performan
method, reflecting recognition throughout the seeyperiod which corresponds with the survey cyolé r@porting access by the customer,
which typically ranges from one to five monthssuirvey results are delivered to the customer afteservices have been completed, then the
corresponding revenues are recognized in full énpgériod such results are provided to the custoAleother revenues are recognized as the
related services are performed or products argeteli to the customer. Revenues for these servé&ebe subject to seasonal factors based o
customers’ requirements that can impact the timfisgyuency, and volume of survey cycles.

Revenues from professional services include comamtenance, consulting, and implementation sesviEees are based on the time and
efforts involved, and revenue is recognized upanpetion of performance milestones using the pridpioal performance method.

We offer training services for clients to facilgantegration of our Internet-based products. Feesaining are based on the time and efforts o
the personnel involved. Basic online training isgm@lly included in the initial contract; howevigremental training is fee based and reve
are generally recognized upon completion of trajréarvices.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by rilagkeur Internet-based products and our surveyrasdarch services through healthcare
organizations. We expect that the portion of oueneies related to services provided via our Intelbased learning and talent management
products will increase in absolute dollar amou8ggecifically, we will seek to generate revenuestfitwealthcare workers by marketing to their
employers or sponsoring organizations. The feeshagge for courseware resulting from this marketintypically paid by either the employer
or sponsoring organization.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method, whereby deferred tax assed liabilities are determined basec
the temporary differences between the financiaéstant and tax bases of assets and liabilities unedst tax rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to ateable income. Management periodically assebsesealizability of its deferred tax asse
and to the extent that we believe a recovery idikely, we establish a valuation allowance to reglthe deferred tax asset to the amount we
estimate will be recoverable. The Company maintaimaluation allowance of approximately $1.1 milli@r the portion of its deferred tax
assets which are related to the portion of our N@dsociated with deductions for stock option esesi

Software Development Costs

Software development includes our costs to devafmpmaintain our products and applications, inclgdiur Internet-based learning and talen
management products and our survey reporting ajaits. Once planning is completed and developtoegins, we capitalize internal costs
and payments to third parties associated with gweldpment efforts where the life expectancy isitgrethan one year and the anticipated cas
flows are expected to exceed the cost of the kset. During 2012 and 2011, we capitalized aqpiately $4.4 million and $6.1 million,
respectively, for software development. Such anm®arg included in the accompanying consolidateanua sheets under the caption
“capitalized software development.” We amortizeitajzed software development costs over their etgmklife, which is generally one to five
years. Capitalized software development costsuygst to a periodic impairment review in accordamdth our impairment review polic
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In connection with software development, our siigaifit estimates involve the assessment of the dprednt period for new products, as well
as the expected useful life of underlying softwar@roduct created. Once capitalized, software ldpweent costs are subject to the policies
estimates described below regarding goodwill, igilales and other long-lived assets.

Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment atrporting unit level by assessing whether it @anlikely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit exceeds its carrying value. If thisessment concludes that is more likely thanhadthe fair value of a reporting unit exceeds
its carrying value, then goodwill is not considenegbaired and no further impairment testing is ieggi Conversely, if the assessment
concludes that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg value, a goodwill impairment test is
performed to compare the fair value of the repgrtinit to its carrying value. The Company deterrsifar value of the reporting units using
both income and market based models. Our modetsioosignificant assumptions and accounting esgésiabout discount rates, future cash
flows and terminal values that could materiallyeaffour operating results or financial positiothi#y were to change significantly in the future
and could result in an impairment. We perform camdwill impairment assessment whenever events amgés in facts or circumstances
indicate that impairment may exist and also duthrgfourth quarter each year. Intangible asseto#mat long-lived assets are also reviewed
for events or changes in facts and circumstancah,ibternally and externally, which may indicateimpairment is present. We measure any
impairment using observable market values or distalifuture cash flows from the related long-liesdets. The cash flow estimates and
discount rates incorporate management’s best eéstimasing appropriate and customary assumpticthpiajections at the date of evaluation.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountagubioth a specific and non-specific identificatioethod. Management's evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a caseabg-basis, and determining whether an accountéghbeuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially unctliecaccount. An allowance is also maintainedaocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolleetiaccounts are written-off in the period managerbetfieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadRiebt expense is recorded when events or ciramees indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific and speeific identification approach. Our allowance doubtful accounts totaled approximately $142.
as of December 31, 2012.

Stock Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense using a faieusdsed method for costs related to share basedegpdy including stock options.
Measurement of such compensation expense reqigr@icant estimation and assumptions; howeverpeieve that the Black Scholes option
pricing model we use for calculating the fair vabfeur stock based compensation plans provideasonable measurement methodology
using a framework that is widely adopted.

As of December 31, 2012, we have two stock incenpians which qualified as stock based compensatams. During the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, we recordedrippately $1.1 million, $788,000, and $664,000 totk based compensation expense,
respectively. We have historically granted stockas or restricted share units to our managementygon an annual basis, or when new
members of the management group begin their emm@ayriiVe have historically granted stock optionsestricted share units to members of
our board of directors in conjunction with our aahshareholders meeting, or as new members arel adde pro rata basis based on the time
elapsed since our annual shareholders’ meetingeect to continue providing equity based awardsiomanagement group and our board
of directors for the foreseeable future. As of Deber 31, 2012, total future compensation costedléd non-vested awards not yet recognizec
was approximately $2.3 million net of estimatedddures, with a weighted average expense recagniieriod of 2.4 years. Future
compensation expense recognition for new equitgdbasvard grants will vary depending on the timing aize of new awards granted,
changes in the market price or volatility of oungoon stock, changes in risk-free interest rate#f,amtual forfeitures vary significantly from
our estimates.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components ofenewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofsesdperations.

Revenues, neRevenues for our HealthStream Learning & Talent dgment business segment primarily consist ofdhewing products an
services: provision of services through our Intetreesed HLC, authoring tools, a variety of cours@asubscriptions, competency and
performance appraisal tools, implementation angglimg services, content development, online saéésing courses (RepDirect™),
HospitalDirect® , SimVentures, and a variety of otbéucational activities to serve professionals W@k within healthcare organizations.
HealthStream Learning & Talent Management revemissinclude products from the recent acquisitiehB®Cl and Sy.Med. Revenues for
HealthStream Research business segment consigalitiycand satisfaction surveys, data analysesiofey results, and other research-based
measurement tools focused on patients, employagsigians, and other members of the community.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin). Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) consists primarily of
salaries and employee benefits, stock based corapemsemployee travel and lodging, materials, autsed phone survey support, contract
labor, hosting costs, and other direct expensexmded with revenues, as well as royalties paiddo content providers based on a
percentage of revenues. Personnel costs withinofestzenues are associated with individuals theilitate
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product delivery, provide services, conduct, precsd manage phone and paper-based surveys, lcastener support calls or inquiries,
manage the technology infrastructure for our hoafgalications, manage content and survey serneoesdinate content maintenance services
and provide training or implementation services.

Product DevelopmenProduct development consists primarily of salagied employee benefits, contract labor, stock basathensation,
content acquisition costs before technologicalibglity is achieved, costs associated with the dgwment of content and expenditures
associated with maintaining, developing and opegatiur training, delivery and administration platis. In addition, product development
expenses are associated with the development ooftware feature enhancements and new produatsoies| costs within product
development include our systems, application dgraknt, and quality assurance teams, product mas\aayet other personnel associated witt
content and product development.

Sales and Marketingales and marketing consists primarily of saladesimissions and employee benefits, stock basegeoasation,
employee travel and lodging, advertising, tradeash@romotions, and related marketing costs. We &ostional customer conference in
Nashville known a“Summit,” a portion of the costs of which are inbéd in sales and marketing expenses. Personnslwitkin sales and
marketing include our HealthStream Learning & Talianagement and HealthStream Research sales teanssiltants, and marketing
personnel.

Other General and Administrative Expeng@ther general and administrative expenses congisaly of salaries and employee benefits,
stock based compensation, employee travel andrigdéacility costs, office expenses, fees for psefenal services, business development an
acquisition related costs, and other operationpénages. Personnel costs within general and adnaitivgt expenses include individuals
associated with normal corporate functions (acdagntegal, human resources, administrative, irgeimformation systems, and executive
management) as well as personnel who maintainaareditation status with various organizations.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed agepreciation, amortization of intangibles consitito have
definite lives, amortization of content developmfags, and amortization of capitalized softwareetfgyment.

Other Income (Expense), N&he primary component of other income is interesbime related to interest earned on cash, cashiatguis and
investments in marketable securities. The primammonent of other expense is interest expensetetatour revolving credit facility.

2012 Compared to 2011

Revenues, neRevenues increased approximately $21.7 millior264%, to $103.7 million for 2012 from $82.1 mitidor 2011. Revenues 1
2012 consisted of $78.6 million, or 76% of totalerue, for HealthStream Learning & Talent Managemed $25.2 million, or 24% of total
revenue, for HealthStream Research. In 2011, reeseoonsisted of $58.1 million, or 71% of total newe, for HealthStream Learning & Talent
Management and $24.0 million, or 29% of total rexesrfor HealthStream Research.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning & Talent Managermcreased $20.5 million, or 35.3%, over 201dvéhues from our Internet-based
subscription learning and talent management predocteased by $17.6 million, or 32.2% over 201& ttua higher number of subscribers
more courseware consumption by subscribers. Our sli&Scriber base increased by 14% during 2012tbraillion fully-implemented
subscribers at the end of 2012 compared to 2.9bmiully-implemented subscribers at the end of POAdditionally, we had a 13% increase
in contracted subscribers, with 3.1 million conteacsubscribers at December 31, 2012 compared $onillion contracted subscribers at
December 31, 2011. Revenues from profeded services increased by $1.5 million compardidet prior year period due to more engagen
than the prior year. Revenues from SimVenturescollaborative arrangement with Laerdal Medicatré@ased approximately $844,000 over
the prior year period.

Revenues for HealthStream Research increased $llichror 4.9%, over 2011. Revenues from Patiesights™ surveys, our survey research
product that generates recurring revenues, incidag®1.8 million, or 10.1%, over the prior yeaev@nues from other surveys, which are
conducted on annual or bi-annual cycles, decline$i@33,000, or 10.5%, compared to the prior yeartdufewer survey engagements.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $10.6amjlbr 34.1%, to $41.7 millic
for 2012 from $31.1 million for 2011. Cost of rewsrs as a percentage of revenues was 40.2% of revéom2012 compared to 37.9% of
revenues for 2011. Cost of revenues for Health8tieearning & Talent Management increased approxipai9.5 million to $28.4 million
and approximated 36.1% and 32.4% of revenues fafthfgtream Learning & Talent Management for 201@ 20111, respectively. The
increase is primarily associated with increasea@lt@s paid by us resulting from growth in coursesvsubscription revenues, increased
personnel expenses, and increased costs assowsitiiqutoject-based services. Cost of revenues falthStream Research increased
approximately $1.0 million to $13.3 million and appimated 52.7% and 51.0% of revenues for Heald#btr Research for 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The increase is primarily the res@ithdditional costs associated with the growthatignt survey volume over the prior year.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxingitel million, or 15.2%, to $8.6 million for 20f@m $7.5
million for 2011. Product development expenses psraentage of revenues were 8.3% and 9.1% of vegcior 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Product development expenses for HealthStream lrep@Talent Management increased approximatelyt $dillion and approximated 9.0%
and 10.2% of revenues for HealthStream Learningadefit Management for 2012 and 2011, respectiveig. decrease as a percentage of
revenue is the result of the growth in revenues the prior year period, while the increase in antas due to additional personnel expenses
associated with the maintenance of our platfornwelsas working on new product development initi@$. Product development expenses for
HealthStream Research increased approximately 400 approximated 6.2% and 6.5% of revenues faithfgtream Research 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persomséd,dncreased approximately $3.9 million, or 24,20 $19.9 millior
for 2012 from $16.0 million for 2011. Sales and keting expenses were 19.2% and 19.5% of revenu@9f® and 2011, respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream ingg€nTalent Management increased approximatel $3illion and approximated 17.9%
and 18.7% of revenues for HealthStream Learningadefit Management for 2012 and 2011, respectivelis @xpense increase is primarily
due to additional personnel and related expenseedsed travel expenses, increased marketingiggeimtreased expenses for our annual
customer Summit, and increased commissions asedaidth higher sales performance compared to tioe pear period. Sales and marketing
expenses for HealthStream Research increased amateky $687,000, and approximated 21.5% and 1®f8évenues for HealthStream
Research for 2012 and 2011, respectively. The esgircrease was primarily due to additional persband related expenses and increased
commissions.

Other General and Administrative Expengether general and administrative expenses increggaeximately $2.7 million, or 25.0%, to
$13.5 million for 2012 from $10.8 million for 2010ther general and administrative expenses ascamgge of revenues were 13.0% and
13.1% of revenues for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Other general and administrative expenses for H8akam Learning & Talent Management increased $68over the prior year period
primarily due to employee recruiting costs, rent] ather support costs, while other general andridtrative expenses for HealthStream
Research decreased $302,000 compared to the paopgriod primarily due to lower personnel cobte unallocated corporate portion of
other general and administrative expenses incregaddmillion over the prior year period, primarédgsociated with additional personnel,
professional fees, stock based compensation expeamefranchise taxes, and other general expeasesell as one-time expenses associatec
with the acquisitions of DCI and Sy.Med. During 20%ve incurred approximately $678,000 of costs @ased with the completed acquisitions
of DCI and Sy.Med, and other costs for evaluatiateptial transactions as part of our business deveént initiatives.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxim&te.2 million, or 23.1%, to $6.7 million for 20f2om

$5.4 million for 2011. The increase primarily raedl from amortization of capitalized software depehent assets and amortization of
intangibles assets for DCI and Sy.Med within Hesitham Learning & Talent Management and depreciaigense associated with leasehols
improvements to our Nashville, Tennessee officespa

Other Income (Expense), NeDther income, net was approximately $118,00@642 compared to $10,000 for 2011. The improveroeet
the prior year period was associated with hightarest income from investments in marketable steari

Income Tax ProvisiorThe Company recorded a provision for income taxé&t5® million for 2012 compared to $4.4 millionrf2011. The
Company’s effective tax rate was 43.7% for 2012 parad to 38.8% for 2011. The increase in the affedtx rate primarily resulted from
changes in certain state apportionment factor estisy which resulted in a higher proportion of meosubject to taxation in those states and &
reduction in our state operating loss carryforwards

Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $701,000, at%0to $7.6 million for 2012 from $6.9 million f@011. Earnings per diluted
share (diluted) were $0.28 per share for 2012, ewatpto $0.29 per diluted share for 2011. A keydiatnpacting the comparison of EPS
(diluted) for 2012 to EPS (diluted) for 2011 was #ffect of additional shares of the Company’s cemstock outstanding that were issued
during the Company’s fourth quarter 2011 stockrirfifg The impact of the stock offering increaseel Weighted average outstanding share
count by approximately 3.6 million shares for 2@bPnpared to 2011.

Adjusted EBITDA (which we define as net income befmterest, income taxes, stock-based compensatnohdepreciation and amortization)
increased by 21.1% to approximately $21.2 millionZ012 compared to $17.5 million for 2011. Thipmwvement is consistent with the
factors mentioned above. See Reconciliation of IB@AP Financial Measures in Management’s Discusaiwh Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations for our recatodn of this calculation to measures under USARA
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2011 Compared to 2010

Revenues, neRevenues increased approximately $16.3 millior2408%, to $82.1 million for 2011 from $65.8 millidor 2010. Revenues for
2011 consisted of $58.1 million, or 71% of totalerue, for HealthStream Learning & Talent Managemed $24.0 million, or 29% of total
revenue, for HealthStream Research. In 2010, reageoonsisted of $45.2 million, or 69% of total newe, for HealthStream Learning & Talent
Management and $20.6 million, or 31% of total rexerfor HealthStream Research.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning & Talent Manag#rmcreased $12.9 million, or 28.6%, over 201&véhues from our Internet-based
subscription learning and talent management praedocteased by $12.1 million, or 28.4% over 2016 ttua higher number of subscribers
more courseware consumption by subscribers. Our sllt€Scriber base increased by 14% during 2011522000 fully-implemented
subscribers at the end of 2011 compared to 2,28G0§-implemented subscribers at the end of 24dditionally, we had a 12% increase in
contracted subscribers, with 2,749,000 contraatbdaibers at December 31, 2011 compared to 2,86@0ntracted subscribers at
December 31, 2010. Revenues from SimVentures, @laborative arrangement with Laerdal Medical, wg824,000 during 2011, while there
were no revenues during 2010.

Revenues for HealthStream Research increased $fighiror 16.5%, over 2010. Revenues from Patlesights™ surveys, our survey
research product that generates recurring revemesased by $3.4 million, or 23.2%, over 2010v&ries from other surveys, which are
conducted on annual or bi-annual cycles, increasadestly over the prior year.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaditin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $6.9anillor 28.4%, to $31.1 million
for 2011 from $24.2 million for 2010. Cost of rewsrs as a percentage of revenues was 37.9% of rewéom2011 compared to 36.8% of
revenues for 2010. Cost of revenues for Health8trieaarning & Talent Management increased approxéais.3 million to $18.8 million
and approximated 32.4% and 30.0% of revenues fafthf&tream Learning & Talent Management for 201d 2010, respectively. The
increase was primarily associated with increasgélties paid by us resulting from growth in coursegvsubscription revenues and from
additional personnel expenses. Cost of revenudddalthStream Research increased approximatelyrillién to $12.2 million and
approximated 51.0% and 51.8% of revenues for H8&ifam Research for 2011 and 2010, respectivelyifidrease in amount was primarily
the result of costs associated with the growthaitiemt survey volume over 2010 levels.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxing&tsh, 000, or 6.9%, to $7.5 million for 2011 fr&mn.0 million
for 2010. Product development expenses as a pageof revenues were 9.1% and 10.6% of revenueXfidr and 2010, respectively.

Product development expenses for HealthStream lrep& Talent Management increased approximately333@0 and approximated 10.2%
and 12.1% of revenues for HealthStream Learningadefit Management for 2011 and 2010, respectiveédg. decrease as a percentage of
revenue was the result of the growth in revenues the prior year, while the increase in amount dwesto additional personnel expenses
associated with platform maintenance and new prodienelopment initiatives, including SimVenturesoduct development expenses for
HealthStream Research increased approximately $850d approximated 6.5% and 7.3% of revenues éaithiStream Research for 2011
2010, respectively. The decrease as a percentaggarfue was the result of the growth in revenwes the prior year, while the increase in
amount was due to additional personnel costs.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persommséd,ancreased approximately $2.9 million, or 22.70 $16.0 millior
for 2011 from $13.1 million for 2010. Approximate®27,000 of the increase resulted from the Sunwahiich occurred during the second
quarter of 2011, but did not occur during 2010eSand marketing expenses approximated 19.5% aB&1& revenues for 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream ingagnTalent Management increased $2.6 million apgroximated 18.7% and 18.4% of
revenues for HealthStream Learning & Talent Managgrfor 2011 and 2010, respectively. This expenseease was primarily due to the
Summit, additional personnel and related expensessased marketing spending, and increased coriemssassociated with better sales
performance compared to the prior year. Sales arlleting expenses for HealthStream Research irenlegsproximately $361,000, and
approximated 19.7% and 21.2% of revenues for H8akfam Research for 2011 and 2010, respectively ekpense increase in amount for
HealthStream Research resulted from the Summitdddional personnel and related expenses.

Other General and Administrative Expend@ther general and administrative expenses increggaeximately $1.2 million, or 12.3%, to
$10.8 million for 2011 from $9.6 million for 201@ther general and administrative expenses as amege of revenues approximated 13.1%
and 14.6% for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other general and administrative expenses for H8aftam Learning & Talent Management increased $®Blover the prior year, primarily
associated with increased rent expense and re@uitists for new employees, while other generalaaimiinistrative expenses for
HealthStream Research decreased by $192,000 fempritr year due to lower personnel costs. Thelocated corporate portion of other
general and administrative expenses increasedndillidn over the prior year, primarily associatedwsoftware maintenance renewal fees,
personnel expenses, professional fees, stock lcasegensation expense and rent expense.
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Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxim&e32,000, or 10.9%, to $5.4 million for 2011rcb4.9
million for 2010. Amortization for HealthStream lreing & Talent Management increased $467,000, d8%4 and approximated 4.1% and
4.2% of revenues for HealthStream Learning & TaMahagement for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Thierse increase was primarily
associated with amortization of capitalized sofevdevelopment, and included amortization of the AW&luct acquired from Laerdal
Medical. Amortization for HealthStream Researchrdased $58,000, or 4.6%, due to certain intangib$ets reaching the end of their expe
life, and approximated 5.0% and 6.1% of revenuesifmalthStream Research for 2011 and 2010, respéctiThe unallocated corporate
portion increased approximately $122,000 and wesgsily associated with increased depreciation ftbemexpansion of our Nashville,
Tennessee office space.

Other Income (Expense), Nedther income, net was approximately $10,000 6ir22compared to a net expense of $21,000 for ZDH®.
improvement over the prior year was associated igher interest income resulting from both higimmested balances and higher yields on
cash and marketable securities.

Income Tax ProvisiorThe Company recorded a provision for income taXepproximately $4.4 million for 2011 compared @ % million for
2010. The Company’s effective tax rate was 38.862€1.1 compared to 41.0% for 2010.

Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $2.8 million6dr2%, to $6.9 million for 2011 from $4.2 millidar 2010. EPS was $0.29
per share (diluted) for 2011, compared to $0.18share (diluted) for 2010.

Adjusted EBITDA improved by 39.2% to approximat&t7.5 million for 2011 compared to $12.6 milliorr 2010. This improvement is
consistent with the factors mentioned above. SemRgliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures in Mgeaents Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations far i@conciliation of this calculation to measuresler US GAAP.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains certain non-GAAP financial swas, including, non-GAAP net income, non-GAAPragiag income, non-GAAP
revenue and adjusted EBITDA, which are used by gamant in analyzing the Company’s financial resaittd ongoing operational
performance. These non-GAAP financial measuresldhmt be considered as a substitute for, or sap&si measures of financial
performance which are prepared in accordance wEHGBAAP and may be different from non-GAAP finanaraasures used by other
companies.

In order to better assess the Company’s finanegllts, management believes that adjusted EBITah igppropriate measure for evaluating
the operating performance of the Company becaysstad EBITDA reflects net income adjusted for r@sh and non-operating items.
Adjusted EBITDA is also used by many investors secdurities analysts to assess the Company’s réguitscurrent operations. Adjusted
EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and shouitilme considered as a measure of financial perfiocenander US GAAP. Because
adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement determineataordance with US GAAP, it is susceptible to vagytalculations. Accordingly,
adjusted EBITDA, as presented, may not be compatabbther similarly titted measures of other comes.

The Company understands that, although adjusted@ BEBlis frequently used by investors and securiéiralysts in their evaluation of
companies, this measure has limitations as an icelyool, and you should not consider it in igma, or as a substitute for an analysis of the
Company’s results as reported under US GAAP. Famgte, adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash exjieras, or future requirements for
capital expenditures or contractual commitmentdpés not reflect non-cash components of emploge®ensation; it does not reflect change:
in, or cash requirements for, our working capie¢ds; and due to the Company’s utilization of fatend state net operating loss
carryforwards in 2010, 2011 and 2012, actual casbrme tax payments have been significantly legs tia tax provision recorded in
accordance with US GAAP, and income tax paymeritscamtinue to be less than the income tax provisiatil our existing federal and state
net operating loss carryforwards have been fullizetl or have expired.

Management compensates for the inherent limitati@mssciated with using adjusted EBITDA through Idisare of such limitations,
presentation of our financial statements in acamedavith US GAAP, and reconciliation of adjustedEBA to net income, the most directly
comparable US GAAP measure.

As discussed elsewhere in this report, the Compampleted the acquisitions of DCI during June 284& Sy.Med in October 2012. In
accordance with US GAAP reporting requirementddarvalue, we recorded a deferred revenue wadden of $192,000 for DCI and $916,C
for Sy.Med. These write-down’s will result in lowavenues than would have otherwise been recogfizeslich services.

In order to provide more accurate trends and coismas of the Company’s revenues, operating inc@meé,net income, management believes
that adding back the deferred revenue write-doveo@ated with fair value accounting for acquiredibhasses provides a better indication of
the ongoing performance of the Company. The revémuie acquired contracts is deferred and typigalcognized over a one year period, Sc
our US GAAP revenues for the one year period dffieracquisition will not reflect the full amount @venues that would have been reported |
the acquired deferred revenue was not written dimair value.
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2012 2011 2010
GAAP net income $ 7,64t $ 6,94« $ 4,15¢
Interest incomt (181) (51) (19
Interest expens 48 48 41
Income tax provisiol 5,932 4,40¢ 2,88¢
Stock based compensation expe 1,13¢ 78¢ 664
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,66 5,412 4,88(
Adjusted EBITDA $ 21,24: $17,54¢ $12,60¢
GAAP revenue: $103,73. $82,06¢ $65,75¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down 49C — —
Non-GAAP revenue: $104,22. $82,06¢ $65,75¢
GAAP operating incom $ 13,45¢ $11,33¢ $ 7,05¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down 49C — —
Non-GAAP operating incom $ 13,94¢ $11,33¢ $ 7,05¢
GAAP net income $ 7,64¢ $ 6,94« $ 4,15¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down, net of ta 27€ — —
Non-GAAP net income $ 7,921 $ 6,94« $ 4,15¢

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR 2013

The Company provides projections and other forwaodting information in this “Financial Outlook f@&013” section within “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations.” This section contains mfamyardlooking statements, particulal
relating to the Company’s future financial perforroa. These forwartboking statements are estimates based on infoomatirrently availab
to the Company, are made pursuant to the safe harbaisions of the Private Securities LitigatiorfBrm Act of 1995 and are subject to the
precautionary statements set forth in the intradaan Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-Koab. Actual results are likely to differ, and
in the past have differed, materially from those&ast by the Company, depending on the outcomaraius factors, including, but not limit
to, those set forth in Item 1A, Risk Factors.

The Company anticipates that consolidated revefurebe full year 2013 will grow by 20 percent t@ gercent when compared to the full yea
2012. This growth rate estimate includes the exggecontributions from the two acquisitions we ctbdering 2012, DCI and Sy.Med. We
anticipate revenue growth in the Learning & Talglinagement segment to be in the 24 percent to @@perange and the Research segrsen
revenue to increase by approximately eight pertetgn percent.

We anticipate continuing investments in 2013 topsupfuture growth. We expect that our investmaeritstake the form of both operating
expenses and capital expenditures. Accordinglyamtiipate that the Company’s 2013 full-year opagaincome will be approximately 6 to10
percent over full-year 2012. This operating incaarge includes our estimated costs of entry inégpibst-acute care market and the impact o
our other 2013 investment initiatives.

We anticipate that our 2013 capital budget wilbieéween $9 million and $10 million. We expect offeetive tax rate to range between 42 anc
44 percent for the full-year of 2013.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected statemehtacome data for each of the eight quarters énggériod ended December 31, 2012. The
information for each quarter has been prepareth@same basis as the audited statements includebdnparts of this report and, in our
opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting diyarormal recurring adjustments, necessary foiirgof@sentation of the results of operations
for these periods. You should read this informationonjunction with HealthStream’s Consolidateddficial Statements and related notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. The afreg results for any quarter are not necessardicative of the results to be expected in the
future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeegniatably over the subscription term. Surveyraséarch revenues are impacted by
seasonal factors resulting from the volume, timangd frequency of survey cycles.

Quarter Ended

March 31, September 3C December 31
June 30,

2012 2012 2012 2012
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $23,67¢ $25,84: $ 26,38( $ 27,83¢
Total operating costs and expen 21,33 21,80( 22,64 24,49:
Income from operation 2,341 4,041 3,731 3,34¢
Net income $ 1,42( $ 2,421 $ 1,97i $ 1,821
Net income per sha®:
Basic $ 0.0% $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.07
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic 25,99¢ 26,12% 26,17: 26,21:
Diluted 27,33t 27,50! 27,59: 27,60(
Quarter Ended
March 31, September 3C December 31
June 30,
2011 2011 2011 2011

(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $18,50¢ $21,05: $ 20,61¢ $ 21,89
Total operating costs and expen 15,94¢ 17,94¢ 17,92¢ 18,91(
Income from operation 2,557 3,10¢ 2,69¢ 2,981
Net income $ 1,52¢ $ 1,83( $  1,79¢ $ 1,79
Net income per sha®;

Basic $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

Diluted $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 21,83 22,00: 22,16 23,77¢

Diluted 22,96¢ 23,35( 23,49¢ 25,17¢

(1) — Due to the nature of interim earnings persitalculations, the sum of quarterly earningsshare amounts may not equal the reported
earnings per share for the full year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was apiprately $22.5 million during 2012 compared to ®Laillion during 2011. Our primar
sources of cash were generated from receipts fnensales of our products and services. The nunflilays sales outstanding (DSO) was 55
days for 2012 compared to 60 days for 2011. The g2om calculates DSO by dividing the average accorgteivable balance (excluding
unbilled and other receivables) by average dailgmees for the year. The primary uses of cashrtd Gur operations include personnel
expenses, sales commissions, royalty payments, gratgrfor contract labor and other direct expensssaiated with delivery of our products
and services, and general corporate expenses.

Net cash used in investing activities was approtetye$59.0 million during 2012 and $17.1 millionrihg 2011. During 2012, the Compa
purchased $118.2 million of marketable securitigdized $9.9 million (net of cash acquired) to atg DCI and Sy.Med, spent $4.4 million-
capitalized software development, purchased $4llBmbf property and equipment, and made $0.2iamilin other investments. These use



cash were partially offset by maturities of markétesecurities of $78.1 million. During 2011, therfpany purchased $17.3 million of
marketable securities, spent $6.1 million for capged software development, and purchased $4liomibf property and equipment. These
uses of cash were partially offset by maturitied sales of marketable securities of $10.4 million.

Cash provided by financing activities was approsxtehe$934,000 during 2012 and $56.4 million durB@jL1. The primary source of cash fr
financing activities for 2012 included proceed$823,000 from the exercise of employee stock opti@he primary sources of cash from
financing activities for 2011 included proceedapproximately $55.1 million from the issuance & Biillion shares of our common stock in
an underwritten public offering and $1.2 milliomin the exercise of employee stock options. The gmrases of cash for 2011 related to
payments under capital lease obligations.
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Revenues increased and operating income improvedtbe prior year, and our balance sheet reflextitipe working capital of $83.3 million
at December 31, 2012 compared to $78.6 millionetdbnber 31, 2011. The increase in working capitaiarily resulted from increases in
cash and investment balances. At December 31, 20da ZZompanys primary source of liquidity was $93.3 million cdsh and cash equivale
and marketable securities. The Company also h@8.8 $nillion revolving credit facility loan agreemteall of which was available at
December 31, 2012.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equitalenarketable securities, cash generated fromatipes, and available borrowings under
our revolving credit facility will be sufficient tmeet anticipated cash needs for working capitak product development, potential
acquisitions and capital expenditures for at ldastext 12 months. Over the past eight years,ave htilized our federal and state net
operating loss carryforwards to offset taxable meoWe anticipate our remaining net operating ¢@ssyforwards will become fully utilized
over the next 12 to 24 months. Our actual tax paysmmay increase significantly once the net opagdtiss carryforwards are fully utilized.
part of our growth strategy, we review possibleusgitions that complement our products and servidés anticipate that future acquisitions, if
any, would be effected through a combination oflstand cash consideration. The issuance of ouk steconsideration for an acquisition
could have a dilutive effect on earnings per slaauek could adversely affect our stock price. Becavséave no material debt or outstanding
borrowings under our revolving credit facility, doalance sheet is unleveraged. Our revolving cfadility contains financial covenants and
availability calculations designed to set a maxinawerage ratio of outstanding debt to equity. €fene, if we were to borrow against our
revolving credit facility, our debt capacity woudé dependent on the covenant values at the tirherodwing. As of December 31, 2012, we
believe we were in compliance with all covenantse Tredit markets have been experiencing extrenatility and disruption, and we cannot
assure you that if we need additional financing ihaill be available on terms favorable to usabmll. Failure to generate sufficient cash flow
from operations or raise additional capital whegquieed in sufficient amounts and on terms acceptéblus could harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgjations

The Company'’s off-balance sheet arrangements pitinzamsist of operating leases, contractual obiayes, and our revolving credit facility,
which is described further in Note 14 to the Compsusonsolidated financial statements containedveltere in this report.

The following table presents a summary of futurgcgpated payments due by the Company under camgthobligations with firm minimum
commitments as of December 31, 2012, excluding ansaalready recorded in the Consolidated Balane=tSHin thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less More

than 1-3 3-5 than

1 year years years 5 years Total
Operating leases $1,91¢  $2,211  $1,27¢ $— $5,40¢
Purchase obligatior 367 40€ — — 773
Total $2,28t $2,617 $1,27¢ $— $6,181
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&¢‘FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update§tWR) 2011-05 Presentation of
Comprehensive Incomavhich amends ASC Topic 22Gpmprehensive Incomé he objective of ASU 2011-05 is to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrione reporting and to increase the prominencéenfi$ reported in other comprehensive
income. The update requires entities to presemisitef net income, items of other comprehensiverireand total comprehensive income in
one continuous statement or two separate consecstiivements, and entities will no longer be altbteepresent items of other comprehensive
income in the statement of stockholders’ equityclRssification adjustments between other compretemscome and net income will be
presented separately on the face of the finant@tdments. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not hewsaterial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-B8angibles—Goodwill and Othewhich amends ASC Topic 35Mhtangibles—Goodwill and
Other. The purpose of ASU 2011-08 is to simplify howeantity tests goodwill for impairment. Entities wélssess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not thaeporting unit’s fair value is less than its camgyvalue. In instances where the fair value is
determined to be less than the carrying valuetiestwill perform the two-step quantitative goodwihpairment test. The adoption of ASU
2011-08 did not have a material impact on our clidated financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changegerest rates. We do not have any foreign cunyeexchange rate risk or commodity
price risk. As of December 31, 2012, the Comparny/f@outstanding debt. We may become subject évdst rate market risk associated with
any future borrowings under our revolving creddility. The interest rate under the revolving ctddtility is based on 30 Day LIBOR plus a
margin of either 175 or 200 basis points determinegtcordance with a pricing grid. We are expdsetharket risk with respect to our cash
and investment balances, which approximated $9dl®mat December 31, 2012. Assuming a hypoth¢ti€8e decrease in interest rates,
interest income from cash and investments wouldedese on an annualized basis by approximately $35,0

The Company’s investment policy and strategy isi$ecl on investing in highly rated securities, whith objective of minimizing the potential
risk of principal loss. The Company’s policy limitee amount of credit exposure to any single isanersets limits on the average portfolio
maturity.

The above market risk discussion and the estimateslints presented are forwdodking statements of market risk assuming the oeoee o
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resalthe future may differ materially from those piigd as a result of actual developments ii
market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2@®2 and 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ie, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for edi¢he three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012. These financial statementsareesponsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examininga ¢@st basis, evidence supporting the amounts iantbsures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2012 and 201idLtle consolidated results of its operations &édash flows for each of the three years ii
the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), HealthStream,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2012, based on criteria estaldighiternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafriee Treadway Commission and our report dateccia, 2013 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 1, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited HealthStream, Inc.’s internal adrver financial reporting as of December 31, 20d#5ed on criteria establishedmternal
Control—Integrated Framewoliksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
HealthStream, Inc.’s management is responsiblenfintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting included in the accompanying Managemenégpdrt on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the Company’s internal control over finahe&porting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corix@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etinagutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, HealthStream, Inc. maintained, limeaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the 2012
consolidated financial statements of HealthStrdam,and our report dated March 1, 2013 expreseachgqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 1, 2013
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 41,36¢ $ 76,90
Marketable securitie- shor-term 51,95: 6,55-
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubéfttounts of $142 and $149 at December 31, 201:

2011, respectivel 15,34¢ 16,01«
Accounts receivabl- unbilled 1,16: 1,31¢
Deferred tax assets, curre 2,45¢ 5,08(
Prepaid royalties, net of amortizati 3,73¢ 3,40¢
Other prepaid expenses and other current a 2,26¢ 1,80¢

Total current asse 118,29: 111,07¢
Property and equipmer

Equipment 18,10¢ 16,36:
Leasehold improvemen 5,05( 4,17(
Furniture and fixture 3,36¢ 2,54¢
26,52¢ 23,07%
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (18,706 (16,990
7,82( 6,087
Marketable securitie- long-term — 5,99¢

Capitalized software development, net of accumdlateortization of $10,987 and $8,344 at December 3.

2012 and 2011, respective 9,732 7,94(
Goodwill 29,29¢ 21,14°
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifcd$10,036 and $8,930 at December 31, 2012 and,2011

respectively 8,80¢ 1,95
Other asset 581 31

Total asset $ 174,52 $ 154,23
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 1,057 $ 2,58t
Accrued liabilities 9,70¢ 5,49
Accrued compensation and related expe 1,121 1,612
Deferred revenu 23,14¢ 22,75¢
Total current liabilities 35,03: 32,44¢
Deferred tax liabilities, noncurre 6,47¢ 32:
Other long term liabilitie: 82¢ 551
Commitments and contingenci — —
Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000 shares autligr2233 and 25,896 shares issued and outsta

at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti 158,02( 154,40¢
Accumulated defici (25,84 (33,48))
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 18 )

Total shareholde’ equity 132,19¢ 120,91!
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 174,52 $ 154,23

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues, n¢
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Other general and administrative exper
Depreciation and amortizatic

Total operating costs and expen
Income from operation

Other income (expense), r

Income before income tax provisi
Income tax provisiol

Net income

Net income per shar
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$103,73;  $82,06¢  $65,75:
41,65¢ 31,066  24,19:
8,61( 7,47¢ 6,98¢
19,89: 16,017 13,05
13,45 10,76( 9,581
6,661 5,41; 4,88(
90,27:  70,72¢ 58,69
13,45¢  11,33¢ 7,05¢
11¢ 10 (21)
13577 11,34¢ 7,03¢
5,93: 4,401 2,88¢
$ 7645 $694/ $ 4,15
$ 02¢ $ 031 $ 0.1¢
$ 02 $ 02¢ $ 0.1
26,12¢ 22,44 21,76
27,500 23,74t 22,48
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Net Income

Other comprehensive income, net of ta:
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable secur
Total other comprehensive income (lo

Comprehensive incorr

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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For the Year Ended
December 31
2012 2011 2010

$7,645  $6,94¢  $4,15¢

25 &) ©)
25 (2 ©)

$7,67C $6,94:  $4,14¢
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Stock Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Deficit Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at December 31, 2009 21,62 $ 96,407 $ (44,586 $ — $ 51,82
Net income — — 4,15¢ — 4,15¢
Comprehensive incorr — — — 5) 5)
Stock based compensati — 664 — — 664
Exercise of stock optior 26( 53€ — — 53€
Repurchase of common stc (78 (379 — — (379
Balance at December 31, 20 21,80¢ 97,22% (40,43) 5) 56,79
Net income — — 6,94 — 6,94
Comprehensive incorr — — — 2 2
Stock based compensati — 78¢€ — — 78¢

Tax benefits from equity awart — 21 — — 21
Exercise of stock optior 50z 1,242 — — 1,24z
Issuance of common sto 3,58¢ 55,13! — — 55,13:
Balance at December 31, 20 25,89¢ 154,40¢ (33,487 @) 120,91!
Net income — — 7,64t — 7,64t
Comprehensive incorr — — — 25 25
Issuance of common stock in acquisitic 56 1,541 — — 1,541
Stock based compensati — 1,13¢ — — 1,13¢

Tax benefits from equity awar: — 111 — — 111
Exercise of stock optior 281 823 — — 823
Balance at December 31, 20 26,23! $158,02( $ (25,847 $ 18 $ 132,19

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 7,64t $ 6,94« $ 4,15¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,661 5,412 4,88(
Deferred income taxe 5,601 4,027 2,67¢
Stock based compensation expe 1,13¢ 78¢ 664
Excess tax benefits from equity awa (111) (22) —
Provision for doubtful accoun 12C 50 65
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaissti
Accounts and unbilled receivabl 1,227 (4,999 (1,232
Prepaid royaltie (329) (263) (1,067)
Other prepaid expenses and other current a (537) (283) (570
Other asset 707 29t 18¢
Accounts payabl (1,529 211 822
Accrued liabilities, accrued compensation and eela&xpenses, and other long-
term liabilities 2,121 1,574 1,02¢
Deferred revenu (19§ 6,01¢ 4,50
Net cash provided by operating activit 22,51 19,75¢ 16,117
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (9,907 — —
Proceeds from sales of marketable secut — 2,221 —
Proceeds from maturities of marketable secur 78,07¢ 8,13¢ —
Purchases of marketable securi (118,179 (17,289 (5,710
Changes in other investmel (239 — —
Payments associated with capitalized software dewnetnt (4,43%) (6,065 (2,044
Purchases of property and equipmr (4,31€) (4,11%) (2,627%)
Net cash used in investing activiti (58,987) (17,109 (10,377)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common st — 55,13: —
Proceeds from exercise of stock optis 823 1,24z 53€
Excess tax benefits from equity awa 111 21 —
Repurchase of common sta — — (379
Payments on capital lease obligations and notelpa — (5) (316)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 934 56,38 (159
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (35,539 59,03¢ 5,581
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 76,90¢ 17,86¢ 12,28
Cash and cash equivalents at end of - $ 41,36¢ $ 76,90¢ $ 17,86¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic $ 61 $ 35 $ 41
Income taxes pai $ 427 $ 387 $ 36¢
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjarss $ 1541 $ — $ —
Acquisition of content rights in exchange for figwgervice: $ 50C $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstei'ements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity and Segments

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporate#!990 as a Tennessee corporation and is hedadoein Nashville, Tennessee. We
operate our business in two segments: HealthSttesming & Talent Management and HealthStream Reke®ur HealthStream Learning
Talent Management products consist of Internetdbasevices and solutions to meet the ongoing trgirgertification, assessment and
development needs of the healthcare community.&kelsitions provide, deliver and track computeedasducation for our customers in the
United States through our software-as-a-servicagpanodel. HealthStream Research products offdthitaae organizations a wide range of
quality and satisfaction surveys, analyses of suresults, and other research-based services.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thinaug Internet-based learning and talent managepredticts, provision of survey and
research services, courseware subscriptions, giofed services, content maintenance, custom coarsedevelopment and other education
and training services.

The Company recognizes revenue when it is reabzedalizable and earned. The Company consideeumvrealized or realizable and earne
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement egistes are fixed or determinable, services andymrtsdare provided to the customer and
collectability is probable or reasonably assured.

Revenue recognized from software and other arraagesis allocated to each element of the arrangeb@sed on the relative fair values of
the elements. While elements include software petsdand post contract customer support, the fdirevaf each element is based on objective
evidence specific to the vendor. If fair value catrime determined for each element of the arrangeramevenue from the arrangement is
deferred until fair value can be determined orlwaitielements of the arrangement are deliveredcarstbmer acceptance has occurred. Sales
the Company’s Internet-based learning and talemagement products include customer support, imphiatien services, and training;
therefore all revenues are deferred until the @kbased product is implemented, at which timemees are recognized ratably over the
subscription service period. In the event thatwitstances occur, which give rise to uncertaintardigg the collectibility of contracted
amounts, revenue recognition is suspended until acertainty is resolved. Fees for these sendoedilled on either a monthly, quarterly, or
annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesughothe Company’s Internet-based learning and tal@magement products and coursewar
subscriptions are recognized ratably over the wrthe subscription service agreement or over ts@itical usage period, if usage typically
differs from the subscription period. Other tramirevenues are generally recognized upon the caimplef training.

Revenues derived from the license of installedwsafe products, associated with the Sy.Med prodactsrecognized upon shipment or
installation of the software. Software support amantenance revenues are recognized ratably ogdgetm of the related agreement.

Revenues recognized from the Company’s survey esebrch services are determined using both thegiopal performance method and the
completed contract method. Revenues are genemifed over the estimated survey cycle, which tylgicanges from less than one month to
up to five months. The survey cycle is generallgiated based on the receipt of the first survespomse and runs through provision of related
survey reports to the customer. If survey resuttsnat available to the customer during the sufiggling cycle, revenues are recognized at
time of report delivery. Fees for these servicestdlied upon initiation of the survey cycle, wjghogress billings made throughout the survey
cycle.

Revenues from professional services, content maamize, and custom courseware development servieee@gnized using a percentage of
completion method based on labor hours, which spord to the completion of performance milestomesdeliverables. All other revenues
are recognized as the related services are pertbomproducts are delivered. Fees for these serdoe generally billed at project initiation &
upon completion of various milestones.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alltith are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etadiiraconsolidation.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assusfiit affect the amounts reported in the findrsteements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codat#id financial statements.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers cash equivalents to be uictest highly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities are classified as availatneséle and are stated at fair market value, wighuinrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
reported in other comprehensive income (loss) erattompanying consolidated balance sheets. Reég&as and losses and declines in
market value judged to be other than temporanngastments in marketable securities are includédt@rest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of income cdheof securities sold is based on the spedéatification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availableséde are included in other income (expense) oathempanying consolidated statements of
income. Premiums and discounts are amortized tweclife of the related available for sale secuagyan adjustment to yield using the effective
interest method.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents the follmyvil) revenue earned and recognized on contractaiated for using the proportional
performance method for which invoices have not lggsrerated or contractual billing dates have nehlyeached; and 2) the difference
between billings for contracts containing escalgiedng over the term of the agreement and thegeition of revenue ratably over the
subscription period. Deferred revenue representaiats, which have been billed or collected, butysitrecognized in revenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastttb dacts and circumstances surrounding each faftgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exiealusvery opportunity to collect payment from thistomer. Bad del
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesta an additional allowance is required basetherCompany’s specific identification
approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaacamounts charged to bad debt expense for the gaded December 31, were as follows
(in thousands):

Allowance
Balance Charged Allowance
at
Beginning to Costs Balance
and at End of
of Period Expense Write -offs Period
2012 $ 14c $ 12C $ (127) $ 14z
2011 $ 157 $ 50 $ (59 $  14c¢
2010 $ 141 $ 65 $ (49 $ 157

Capitalized Software Development

Capitalized software development is stated on #sgshof cost, and is presented net of accumulatextiezation. The Company capitalizes ct
incurred during the software development phas@fojects when such costs are material. These amsetanortized using the straight-line
method, generally ranging between one to five yeie Company capitalized approximately $4.4 milland $6.1 million during 2012 and
2011, respectively. Maintenance and operating @stexpensed as incurred. As of December 31, 20d2011, there were no capitalized

internal development costs for computer softwareltwed for resale.

Financial Instruments

The Company has financial instruments, includinghcand cash equivalents, accounts receivable, atscoeceivable-unbilled, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, and deferred reveihe. carrying amounts of these financial instruraeqproximate fair value because of the
short term maturity or short term nature of sudtriiments. Marketable securities approximate faline based on quoted market prices, see

Note 4.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin the principal or most advantageous ma
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date. The fair value hieygrdbritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used in measuring fair value. Therghmee levels to the fair value hierarchy basedherréliability of inputs, as follows:

Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (justdd) for identical assets or liabilities in @etimarkets.
Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included in Laviiat are observable for the asset or liabilitjnex directly or indirectly.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs in which little or no markeatalexists, therefore requiring the Company to kbgviéss own assumptions.

The Company evaluates assets and liabilities sutmdair value measurements on a recurring basitetermine the appropriate level at which
to classify them for each reporting period. Thitedmination requires significant judgments to beleby the Company.

At December 31, 2012, the fair value measurementais for assets consisted of marketable secuvitigsh are classified as available for
sale. The carrying amounts reported in the conaiibalance sheets approximate the fair valueeo€ompany’s marketable securities base
on quoted market prices or alternative pricing sesrand models utilizing market observable inpdtecember 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company did not have any financial liabilities thagre subject to fair value measurements.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basissbf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assetder capital leases and leasehold improvemeitiishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmtddepreciation and amortization of property andigapent totaled $2.6 million and $1.9
million for the years ended December 31, 2012 didl2respectively.

Years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10
Equipment 35

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. Company evaluates goodwill for impairm
at the reporting unit level by assessing whethisriitore likely than not that the fair value ofegorting unit exceeds its carrying value. If this
assessment concludes that is more likely thanhaothe fair value of a reporting unit exceedségying value, then goodwill is not conside
impaired and no further impairment testing is reggi Conversely, if the assessment concludesttigatriore likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying valagoodwill impairment test is performed to congpire fair value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value. The Company determines fair valiugh@ reporting units using both income and mableted models. The Company will
perform its goodwill impairment test whenever egent changes in facts or circumstances indicatantiyzairment may exist, and at least
annually during the fourth quarter.

As of December 31, 2012 intangible assets with meimg unamortized balances include contract rigims customer relationships, internally-
developed technology and patents, non-competitipeeaments, and trade names. These intangible assatsnsidered to have definite useful
lives and are being amortized on a straight liréshd& he weighted average amortization period &inite lived intangible assets as of
December 31, 2012 is 8.7 years. Intangible assetemiewed for impairment whenever events or cbarg facts or circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may noebeverable. There were no impairments identifieceoorded for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, or 2010.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held for use are reviewe@vents or changes in facts and circumstancés,imi@rnally and externally, which may
indicate that an impairment of loliged assets held for use are present. The Compeagures any impairment using observable markees
or discounted future cash flows from the relatewltived assets. The cash flow estimates and diggates incorporate management’s best
estimates, using appropriate and customary assonspdind projections at the date of evaluation. Mameent periodically evaluates whether
the carrying value of long-lived assets, includongperty and equipment, capitalized software dguaknt, other assets and intangible assets
will be recoverable. There were no impairments fified or recorded for the years ended DecembeRB12, 2011, or 2010.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Other Assets
Other assets are comprised of the long-term podi@ontent development fees and an investmentusted for under the equity method.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtaility method, whereby deferred tax assets é&atillties are determined based on the
temporary differences between the financial statérapd tax bases of assets and liabilities meastrick rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to atte@ble income. Management evaluates all avalabidence, both positive and negative
determine whether, based on the weight of thates\d, a valuation allowance is needed. Futurezaegan of the tax benefit of an existing
deductible temporary difference or carryforwardnoiéttely depends on the existence of sufficientliéxancome of the appropriate character
within the carryback or carryforward period avaitabnder the tax law. There are four possible siof taxable income that may be available
under the tax law to realize a tax benefit for drithle temporary differences and carryforwardsfutjire reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, 2) future taxable incomdestee of reversing temporary differences and darwyards, 3) taxable income in prior
carryback year(s) if carryback is permitted undhertbx law, and 4) tax-planning strategies thatldidtinecessary, be implemented to realize
deductible temporary differences or carryforwarderpo their expiration. Management reviews thalimbility of its deferred tax assets each
reporting period to identify whether any significa@hanges in circumstances or assumptions havareccthat could materially affect the
realizability of deferred tax assets. As of Decengfe 2012, the Company had established a valuatiowance of $1.1 million for the portion
of its net deferred tax assets that are not mkedylithan not expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for income tax uncertaintsrsgua more-likely-than-not recognition threshoéséd on the technical merits of the tax
position taken. Tax positions that meet the mdtelithan-not recognition threshold are measureatder to determine the tax benefit to be
recognized in the financial statements. The Commapgnses any penalties or interest associatedaxthbligations as general and
administrative expenses and interest expense,atsglg.

Accrual for Service Credits

The Company maintains an accrual for service csedat may occur from our Internet-based learnimgjtalent management products. The
accrual is estimated using management’s judgmehtaalysis of potential risk of loss associatedwlibwntime, system performance, or othe
contractual obligations associated with our hosigglications. At December 31, 2012, and 2011, toeual for service credits balance was
approximately $69,000 and $72,000, respectivelg,iamncluded on the accompanying consolidatedntalaheets under the caption “accrued
liabilities.”

Other Long Term Liabilities

Other long term liabilities represent the defemewtk liability associated with an operating leasedffice space in Nashville, Tennessee as wel
as deferred service credits (see Note 9).

Advertising

The Company expenses the costs of advertisingcasrad. Advertising expense for the years endece®éer 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was
approximately $349,000, $251,000, and $130,00pectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs that are associatddoit products and services are included in cost\@nues.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by divitliegnet income available to common shareholderthfoperiod by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the@geBiluted net income per share is computed bidilig the net income for the period by
the weighted average number of common and commeoinagnt shares outstanding during the period. Comeguivalent shares, composed
of incremental common shares issuable upon theiseenf stock options, are included in dilutedinebme per share to the extent these shar
are dilutive. Common equivalent shares that havargirdilutive effect on diluted net income per ghhave been excluded from the calculatiot
of diluted weighted average shares outstandin¢htoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

The Company places its temporary excess cash meess in high quality, short-term money marketrinstents. At times, such investments
may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

The Company sells its products and services tmuarcompanies in the healthcare industry thataaatéd in the United States. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ firahcondition and generally require no collateraini customers. The Company did not have
any single customer representing over 10% of netmees during 2012, 2011, or 2010.

Stock Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2012, the Company maintainsstwok based compensation plans, which are desdribgdte 12. The Company accou
for stock based compensation using the fair-vahset method for costs related to share-based paynireriuding stock options and restricted
share units. The Company uses the Black Scholésopticing model for calculating the fair valueation awards issued under its stock
based compensation plan. The Company measures oeatjpm cost of restricted share units based ooltdsing fair market value of the
Company’s stock on the date of grant. Stock basetbensation cost is measured at the grant dated lmasthe fair value of the award that is
ultimately expected to vest, and is recognizednasxgense over the requisite service period. Thagamy recognizes tax benefits from stock
based compensation if an excess tax benefit izeshlExcess tax benefits are recorded as an seteecommon stock when realized.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&¢‘FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update§tR) 2011-05 Presentation of
Comprehensive Incomevhich amends ASC Topic 2208pmprehensive Incomérhe objective of ASU 2011-05 is to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofromea reporting and to increase the prominencéenfis reported in other comprehensive
income. The update requires entities to presemisitef net income, items of other comprehensivermeand total comprehensive income in
one continuous statement or two separate consecstiivements, and entities will no longer be altbteepresent items of other comprehensive
income in the statement of stockholders’ equityclRssification adjustments between other compretemscome and net income will be
presented separately on the face of the finan@tments. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not heweaterial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-B8angibles—Goodwill and Othewhich amends ASC Topic 35Mtangibles—Goodwill and
Other. The purpose of ASU 2011-08 is to simplify howeantity tests goodwill for impairment. Entities wéssess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not thaéporting unit’s fair value is less than its camgyvalue. In instances where the fair value is
determined to be less than the carrying valuetieswill perform the two-step quantitative goodvrnhpairment test. The adoption of ASU
2011-08 did not have a material impact on our clidated financial statements.

2. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 75 miliibares of common stock. The number of common slissaed and outstanding as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately 28liamand 25.9 million, respectively. During 201the Company issued approximately
3.6 million shares of common stock in connectiothvein underwritten public offering, raising appirogitely $55.1 million.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10 milibares of preferred stock in one or more ser@snh the relative voting powers,
designations, preferences, rights and qualificatiimitations or restrictions, and other termsheesBoard of Directors may fix in providing for
the issuance of such series, without any vote tioraof the shareholders. During 2000, all outstagdhares of preferred stock were converte
into common stock in connection with our initialpie offering (IPO). There have been no sharesrefepred stock outstanding since our IPO.
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3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share for the theaesyended December 31, 2012 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income $ 7,64¢ $ 6,94« $ 4,15¢
Denominator
Weightec-average shares outstand 26,12¢ 22,44: 21,767
Effect of dilutive share 1,37¢ 1,30: 721
Weightec-average diluted shar 27,50" 23,74¢ 22,48¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.2¢ $ 0.31 $ 0.1¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢

Potentially dilutive shares representing approxétyad.1 million, 0.2 million, and 0.4 million sha®f common stock for 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively, were excluded from the calooadf diluted earnings per share because thetceifould have been anti-dilutive.

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value afketable securities, which were all classified @ailable for sale, included the following
thousands):

December 31, 201,

Unrealize: Unrealizer
Adjusted Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Level 1:
Mutual funds $ 5,04: $ 30 $ — $ 5,072
Level 2:
Certificates of depos 2,25¢ — — 2,25¢
Commercial pape 3,122 1 — 3,12z
Corporate debt securitis 27,017 1 a7 27,00:
U.S. government securitit 14,49¢ 3 — 14,50:
Subtotal 46,89: 5 a7 46,88(
Total $51,93¢ $ 35 $ 19 $51,95:
December 31, 201
Unrealize: Unrealizel
Adjusted Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Level 1:
Mutual funds $ 2,504 $ — $ — $ 2,504
Level 2:
Corporate debt securitis 2,03¢ — Q) 2,037
U.S. government securitit 8,01: — (6) 8,007
Subtotal 10,05 — (7) 10,04«
Total $12,55¢ $ — $ (7) $12,54¢

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrite sheet approximate fair value based on quwéekiet prices or alternative pricing
sources and models utilizing market observabletsipAs of December 31, 2012, the Company doesoaratider any of its marketable
securities to be other than temporarily impaired.
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5. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On June 29, 2012, the Company acquired all oftihekof Decision Critical, Inc., (DCI) an AustingXas based company that specializes in
learning and competency management products fae-aewe hospitals. The Company acquired DCI th&uradvance its suite of talent
management solutions. The consideration paid ford@@sisted of approximately $3.4 million in castd®2,124 shares of our common stock
Also, the Company may make additional paymentabu$300,000, contingent upon achievement of iefil@ancial targets and business
outcomes over the next three years. The Companyridt approximately $203,000 in transaction coss®eated with the DCI acquisition. In
allocating the purchase price, the Company recoagedoximately $2.9 million of goodwill, $1.5 miin of identifiable intangible assets,
$291,000 of net tangible assets and $456,000 efdef tax liabilities. The net tangible assetsudel deferred revenue, which in accordance
with US GAAP, was adjusted down from a book valti®18,000 to an estimated fair value of $356,008: deferred revenue recorded
represents the estimated fair value of the contehatbligation assumed as of the acquisition dete.$192,000 writelown of deferred reveni
will result in lower revenues than would have ottise been recognized for such services. The restitiperations for DCI have been includec
in the Company’s consolidated financial stateméwois the date of acquisition.

On October 19, 2012, the Company acquired all ®fstock of Sy.Med Development, Inc. (Sy.Med), aiBmod, Tennessee based company
that specializes in credentialing related softwaaucts for healthcare providers. The Company ieedby.Med to further advance its suite
talent management solutions. The consideration fpai8y.Med consisted of approximately $7.1 milliarcash and 34,060 shares of our
common stock, as well as a working capital adjustrpayment of approximately $180,000. The Compaay make additional payments of
to $1.5 million, contingent upon achievement otaier financial targets and business outcomes dwenéxt two years. The Company incurred
approximately $165,000 in transaction costs asteti@ith the Sy.Med acquisition. In allocating thechase price, the Company recorded
approximately $5.3 million of goodwill, $6.5 millioof identifiable intangible assets, $246,000 dftaagible assets and $2.8 million of
deferred tax liabilities. The net tangible assetdude deferred revenue, which was adjusted doam & book value of $1.1 million to an
estimated fair value of $229,000. The $916,000endibwn of deferred revenue will result in lowereaues than would have otherwise been
recognized for such services. The allocation otpase price is preliminary and may be subject smgk within the measurement period of
year from the acquisition date. The primary arethefpreliminary purchase price allocation thatas complete is finalizing adjustments
working capital. The results of operations for Sgdvhave been included in the Company’s consolidi&ttedcial statements from the date of
acquisition.

6. GOODWILL

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least arlyu® determine whether it is more likely than nioat the fair value of the reporting units
exceed their carrying value. If this assessmentlcdes that is more likely than not that the falue of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
value, then goodwill is not considered impaired andurther impairment testing is required. Quél factors are considered for this
assessment, such as, financial performance, iydastr market comparables, and other factors afigdlie reporting unit. If the assessment
concludes that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg value, a goodwill impairment test is
performed to compare the fair value of the repgrtinit to its carrying value. The Company deterrnifar value of the reporting units using
both income and market based models. Under thed®d® the technique used to determine fair vaisensitive to estimates and assump
associated with cash flow from operations andritsvth, discount rates, and reporting unit termivedles. The Company performs its annual
impairment evaluation of goodwill during the foudbarter of each year and as changes in factsiendnstances indicate impairment exists.
During the annual impairment evaluation in the fouquarter of 2012 and 2011, the results of ouesmsent indicated goodwill was not
impaired.

On June 29, 2012 we acquired DCI, and on Octobg20®2 we acquired Sy.Med. We recorded goodwilipgfroximately $8.2 million in
connection with these acquisitions within the Heatteam Learning & Talent Management segment. fihages in the carrying amount of
goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2012241d. are as follows (in thousands):

Learning &
Talent
Managemen Researcl Total
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 3,30% $17,84( $21,147
Acquisition of Sy.Med Development, In 5,291 — 5,291
Acquisition of Decision Critical, Inc 2,861 — 2,861
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 11,45¢ $17,84( $29,29¢
Learning &
Talent
Managemen Researcl Total
Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 3,30% $17,84( $21,14°
Changes in carrying value of goodw — — —
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 3,30i $17,84( $21,147
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets are considered to have fin#eful lives. Customer related intangibles arersizesl over their estimated useful lives
ranging from eight to ten years. Other intangilssets include non-competition agreements, techgaod patents, and trade names, and are
being amortized over periods ranging from five itwenyears. Amortization of intangible assets wgwagmately $1.1 million, $887,000, and
$947,000, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 8@0d 2010, respectively.

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offttlewing (in thousands):

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Gross
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Customer related $15,61¢ $ (8,969 $6,65( $ 9,91t $ (7,95¢) $1,95i
Other 3,220 (1,067  2,15¢ 972 (972) —
Total $18,84: $ (10,030 $8,80¢ $10,887 $ (8,930 $1,957

The expected annual amortization expense for thesyending December 31, is as follows (in thousgnds

2013 $1,43(
2014 1,32
2015 96¢
2016 88(C
2017 851
Thereaftel 3,34¢

Total $8,80¢

8. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENT

The Company participates in a collaborative arramg®, SimVenture§ | with Laerdal Medical A/S (Ladrifledical). The Company
receives 50 percent of the profits or losses geeeifaom this collaborative arrangement. The paurtiel not form a separate legal entity as par
of the collaborative arrangement; therefore, then@any accounts for SimVentures as a collaboratirengement in accordance with
applicable accounting guidance. During the firsarger of 2011, the Company acquired a 50 percentoship interest in Laerdal Medical's
Advanced Video System (AVS) product for $3.5 mitlim cash. AVS is a product that enables usersidiraced patient simulators to easily
capture video, audio, data logs, and “patient” oesgs. The AVS product is jointly owned through Bentures. During the second quarter of
2011, SimVentures launched SimStére , one of thepoments of SimCentér that offers healthcare pergidn opportunity to sample and
purchase simulation scenarios to use in their sition training activities. For the year ended Delsen81, 2012, the Company recorded
approximately $1.7 million of revenues and $1.7lioml of expenses related to the collaborative ayeament. For the year ended December 31
2011, the Company recorded approximately $0.8 onilbf revenues and $1.3 million of expenses reltiete collaborative arrangement. The
Company also recorded approximately $1.3 milliod $4.3 million of capitalized software developm&mtSimVentures during 2012 and
2011, respectively.

9. CONTENT RIGHTS AND DEFERRED SERVICE CREDITS

During 2012, the Company entered into a renewaagent with a customer in which the Company wasigea continued rights to distribute
and resell courseware owned by the customer. lhamge for the receipt of an exclusive license strithute and resell this courseware, the
Company has provided, and will continue to provitie, customer with service credits that can be axgtd for future purchases of the
Company'’s products and services. The value assignié content rights and the deferred servicdityevas $500,000, which represents the
estimated fair value of the assets relinquishe@. ddntent rights are classified within other prepaipenses and other assets, and the deferre
service credits are classified within accrued liabs and other long-term liabilities on our conded consolidated balance sheets.

These exchangeable service credits will be issnadally through December 31, 2016, and will expiventy-four months after issuance. Any
unused credits will be forfeited upon expiratiouridg 2012, the Company issued exchangeable serxeckts of $100,000 in accordance with
this agreement, and is obligated to issue remaisgmgice credits of $100,000 annually through 201 content rights are being amortized or
a straight-line basis through December 31, 2016eReges for products or services provided in exchdagthese service credits will be
recognized in accordance with the Company’s reveecegnition policies.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company provides services to healthcare orgtoirs and other members within the healthcaresimguThese services are primarily
focused on the delivery of learning and talent nganaent products and services (HealthStream Leagihglent Management), as well as
survey and research services (HealthStream Re3earch

The Company measures segment performance basgrbmting income before income taxes and prior écaffocation of certain corporate
overhead expenses, interest income, interest egpand depreciation. The Unallocated componenwbgioludes corporate functions, such as
accounting, human resources, legal, investor oglafiadministrative, and executive personnel, aégien, a portion of amortization, and
certain other expenses, which are not currentbcatked in measuring segment performance. The foltpig the Company’s business segment
information as of and for the years ended Decer@beR012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands).

Year ended December 31, 201

Learning &
Talent
Managemen Researcl Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 78,56¢ $25,16¢ $ — $ 103,73:
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 28,39( 13,26¢ — 41,65¢
Product developmel 7,04( 1,57C — 8,61(
Sales and marketir 14,08: 5,42( 391 19,89:
Other general and administrati 2,76( 1,33( 9,36: 13,45:
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,871 1,17¢ 2,60¢ 6,66
Total income from operatior $ 23,41¢ $ 2,39¢ $ (12,359 $ 13,45¢
*Segment asse $ 46,69! $23,97¢ $103,85° $ 174,52¢
Purchases of property and equipm $  1,72¢ $ 12C $ 2,46¢ $  4,31¢
Payments associated with capitalized software deweént $ 3,63¢ $ 89¢ $ — $ 4,43t
Year ended December 31, 201
Learning &
Talent

Managemen Researct Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 58,07¢ $23,98¢ $ — $ 82,06¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amstitin) 18,84: 12,22 — 31,06¢
Product developmel 5,907 1,56¢€ — 7,47:
Sales and marketir 10,87: 4,73: 413 16,017
Other general and administrati 2,11¢ 1,63 7,012 10,76(
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,36¢ 1,19¢ 1,85¢ 5,412
Total income from operatior $ 17,97¢ $ 2,63¢ $ (9,279 $ 11,33¢
*Segment asse $ 27,32. $26,08¢ $100,82° $ 154,23
Purchases of property and equipm $ 1,57i $ A $ 2,49¢ $ 411t
Payments associated with capitalized software denetnt $ 5,720 $ 34t $ — $ 6,068
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Year ended December 31, 201

Learning &
Talent

Managemen Researcl Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 45,16¢ $20,58¢ $ — $ 65,75¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 13,52¢ 10,66: — 24,19:
Product developmel 5,48¢ 1,50¢ — 6,98¢
Sales and marketir 8,31( 4,37 372 13,05¢
Other general and administrati 1,86¢ 1,82¢ 5,891 9,581
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,89¢ 1,252 1,732 4,88(
Total income from operatior $ 14,08( $ 974 $ (7,999 $ 7,05¢
*Segment asse $ 18,73: $26,70. $ 36,57¢ $ 82,01:
Purchases of property and equipr $ 1,17 $ 40C $ 1,051 $ 2,62:
Payments associated with capitalized software deweént $ 1,79 $  24¢ $ — $ 2,044

* Segment assets include accounts and unbilledvadtles, prepaid and other current assets, otlsetgscapitalized software development,
certain property and equipment, and intangibletas&ash and cash equivalents and marketable seswie not allocated to individual
segments, and are included within Unallocated.ghificant portion of property and equipment asse¢sincluded within Unallocate

11. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes is comprised offtilwing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Current federal $ 58 $ 165 $ 14¢
Current statt 273 214 65
Deferred federe 4,80¢ 3,72¢ 2,51¢
Deferred stat: 797 304 15€
Provision for income taxe $5,93: $4,40¢ $2,88¢

A reconciliation of income taxes at the statut@gdral income tax rate to the provision for incdmees included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income is as followsh@usands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Federal tax provision at the statutory rate $4,751 $3,97: $2,391
State income tax provision, net of federal ber 974 337 30¢
Other 207 95 184
Provision for income taxe $5,93: $4,40¢ $2,88¢

Management periodically assesses the realizabilitts deferred tax assets, and to the extentamatovery is not likely, a valuation allowance
is established to reduce the deferred tax assbetamount estimated to be recoverable. At DeceBibe2012, a valuation allowance of $1.1
million exists for the remaining portion of defedtrax assets, which are comprised of the portiamedbperating loss carryforwards attribute

to the exercises of stock options. Any future reidums of the valuation allowance associated with tleferred tax asset would be recognized ¢
an increase to common stock.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had fedexhktate net operating loss carryforwards of $14lllom and $6.8 million, respectively.
These loss carryforwards will expire in years 2€i®ugh 2024. As of December 31, 2012, $8.7 milbbthe net operating loss carryforwards
is attributable to the exercise of stock optioms] H realized, the tax benefit will be recordedaasincrease to common stock.

The Company has research and development tax cardyfforwards of $313,000 that expire in varyimgoants through 2031. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company had alternativenmuimi tax credit carryforwards of $590,000 that ar&ilable to offset future regular tax
liabilities and they do not expire. Federal incaiave payments of $189,000, $194,000 and $191,006 wade during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectivedye icome tax payments of $238,000, $193,000$47dd@,000 were made during the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, resplgctive
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

11. INCOME TAXES (continued)

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’'salmtated balance sheets did not reflect a lighiitit uncertain tax positions, nor any
accrued penalties or interest associated with irctam uncertainties. The Company is subject torimetaxation at the federal and various stat
levels. The Company is subject to U.S. federakteaminations for tax years 2008 through 2012. loass/forwards and credit carryforwards
generated or utilized in years earlier than 20@8adso subject to examination and adjustment. Tdregany has no income tax examinations il
process.

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflech#t¢ax effects of temporary differences betwdencarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounggidsr income tax purposes. Significant componehteferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 57 $ 59
Accrued liabilities 463 77
Depreciatior — 83
Tax credits 902 83:c
Stock based compensati 65( 337
Net operating loss carryforwar 3,48¢ 5,68:
Total deferred tax asse 5,551 7,772
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,099 (1,099
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowe 4,46¢ 6,67¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Deductible goodwil 1,492 1,11:
Nondeductible intangible ass¢ 3,194 563
Prepaid asse 53¢ —
Capitalized software developme 2,25: —
Deferred revenu 22C —
Depreciatior 223 —
Tax basis in joint ventur 55¢ 24¢€
Total deferred tax liabilitie 8,47¢ 1,927
Net deferred tax (liabilities) asse $(4,015) $ 4,751

12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Incentive Plans

The Company’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (2010 Pdana)) 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan; colretyi the 2010 Plan and the 2000 Plar
referred to as the Plan) authorize the grant abapt restricted share units (RSU), or other foofstock based compensation to employees,
officers, directors and others, and such grantd eispproved by the Compensation Committee oBtieed of Directors. Options granted
under the Plan have terms of no more than ten ywdtscertain restrictions. The Plan allows thengensation Committee of the Board of
Directors to determine the vesting period and patars of each grant. The vesting period of theomgtand RSU’s granted has historically
ranged from immediate vesting to annual vestingoujpur years, beginning one year after the grate.dAs of December 31, 2012,
approximately 930,000 shares of unissued commark seamained reserved for future stock incentivegrainder the Plan. The Company
issues new shares of common stock when optionsxareised or when RSU’s become vested.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Stock Option Activity

A summary of activity and various other informati@tative to stock options for the year ended Ddmem31, 2012 is presented in the tables
below (in thousands, except exercise price).

Weighted-
Aggregate
Common Average
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 2,20t $ 4.1
Grantec — —
Exercisec (281) 2.92
Expired — —
Forfeited (10 5.3¢€
Outstanding at end of peric 1,914 $ 4.2¢ $38,31¢
Exercisable at end of peria 1,41¢ $ 3.5z $29,42¢

The aggregate intrinsic value for stock optionthimtable above represents the total differenogder the Company'’s closing stock price on
December 31, 2012 (the last trading day of the)yefa$24.31 and the option exercise price, mukiglby the number of in-the-money options
as of December 31, 2012. The weighted average némgatontractual term of options outstanding atémeber 31, 2012 was 3.6 years. Opti
exercisable at December 31, 2012 have a weightehge remaining contractual term of 2.9 years.

Other information relative to option activity dugithe three years ended December 31, 2012 islag/ff{in thousands, except weighted
average grant date fair value):

2012 2011 2010
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptgranted $ — $ 4.67 $2.1¢F
Total grant date fair value of stock options ve: $ 87¢ $ 644 $58¢
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $4,992 $4,53¢ $63€
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock opt $ 82¢ $1,24: $53€

Restricted Share Unit Activity

A summary of activity relative to RSU’s for the yeaded December 31, 2012 is follows (in thousaexsept weighted average grant date fai
value):

Weighted-
Number Average Aggregate
Grant
of Date Fair Intrinsic
RSU's Value Value
Outstanding at beginning of period — $ —
Grantec 74 23.2:
Vested — —
Cancellec (D 23.0(
Outstanding at end of peric 73 $ 23.2¢ $ 1,78(

Stock Based Compensation

Total stock based compensation expense recordedddhree years ended December 31, 2012, whigtdsded in our statements of income,
is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) $ 45 $ 41 $ 37
Product developmel 13z 17¢ 12¢
Sales and marketir 151 104 162
Other general and administrati 807 464 337

Total stock based compensation expe $1,13¢ $78¢ $664
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The Company amortizes the fair value of all stoakdal awards, net of estimated forfeitures, onadgsii-line basis over the requisite service
period, which generally is the vesting period. A®ecember 31, 2012, total unrecognized compensatipense related to non-vested stock
options and RSU’s was approximately $2.3 millioet of estimated forfeitures, with a weighted averagpense recognition period of 2.35
years. The Company realized $111,000 of excessdagfits during the year ended December 31, Z

Stock based compensation cost for RSU’s is meadased on the closing fair market value of the Camyfs stock on the date of grant. Stock
based compensation cost for stock options is estiinat the grant date based on the fair value lzaémiusing the Black-Scholes method. The
Company did not grant any stock options during 20t ranges of assumptions used for determiniag#timated fair value of stock options
during 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Risk-free interest rat 1.05-2.3% 1.88-2.4%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life (in years 5to 7 5to 7
Expected forfeiture rat 0-5% 0-10%
Volatility 50% 55%

Risk-free interest rates based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect atithe of the option grant having a term equivaterthe expected life of
the option.

Expected dividend yiels zero because the Company has not made any dd/Beyments in its history and does not plan todiaiglends in
the foreseeable future.

Expected lifeis the period of time the option is expected toagmoutstanding, and is based on historical expeeeThe contractual option life
ranges from eight to ten years. The Company estiintiie expected life of options granted to membg&msanagement to be five years and
seven years for directors.

Expected forfeiture ratis the estimated percentage of options grantedhtigatot expected to become fully vested. Thisresd# is based on
historical experience, and will be adjusted as s&&@eg/ to match the actual forfeiture experience.

Volatility is the measure of the amount by which the priexpected to fluctuate. The Company estimated Vityaltiased on the actual
historical volatility of the Company’s common stoekaid management believes future volatility willdimilar to the Company’s historical
volatility experience.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
401(k) Plan

The Company has a definedntribution employee benefit plan (401(k) Plargarporating provisions of Section 401(k) of theehmal Revent
Code. Employees must have attained the age of @hae completed thirty days of service to be lgto participate in the 401(k) Plan.
Under the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan fnenmay make contributions, on a tax-deferred basisto exceed 20% of compensation,
subject to IRS limitations. The Company has notjoled matching contributions through December 31,2
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14. DEBT
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company hadchbalitstanding.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company maintains a Loan Agreement (the “RemglCredit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank (“SunTruktn the aggregate principal
amount of $20.0 million, which matures on July 2@14. The obligations under the revolving crediilfey are guaranteed by each of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Company’s borrowinggeuahe revolving credit facility bear interestta 30Day LIBOR Rate plus a margin
either 175 or 200 basis points determined in aaurd with a pricing grid. Principal is payable utl bn the maturity date. The Company is
required to pay a commitment fee of 25 basis pgietsannum of the average daily unused portioh®févolving credit facility.

The purpose of the revolving credit facility is fpeneral working capital needs, permitted acqoisgti(as defined in the Loan Agreement), anc
for stock repurchase and/or redemption transactiwatsthe Company may authorize.

The revolving credit facility contains certain coaats that, among other things, restrict additiam@ébtedness, liens and encumbrances,
changes to the character of the Company’s businegsisitions, asset dispositions, mergers andotidiasions, sale or discount of receivables,
creation or acquisitions of additional subsidiareasd other matters customarily restricted in sagtteements.
In addition, the revolving credit facility requirise Company to meet certain financial tests, iiclg, without limitation:

* amaximum total leverage ratio (consolidated debolidated EBITDA) of 2.0 to 1.(

» funded debt to total capitalization may not excé@®o; anc

« tangible net worth may not be less than $:

As of December 31, 2012, the Company believes & waompliance with all covenants. There were alaitices outstanding on the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2012.

15. LEASES

The Company has non-cancellable operating leagasuplly for office space and office equipment. Sde®se agreements contain provisions

for escalating rent payments over the initial teohthe lease. The Company accounts for theseddaseecognizing rent expense on a straigh
line basis and adjusting the deferred rent expkaisdity for the difference between the straightd rent expense and the amount of rent paid.
The Company also leases certain office equipmeth¢ruoperating leases. Total rent expense undepalating leases was approximately $2.2
million, $1.9 million, and $1.8 million, for the ges ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, tesgec

Future rental payment commitments at December @12 2nder non-cancelable operating leases, wittalitérms of one year or more, are as
follows (in thousands):

2013 $1,91¢
2014 1,14(
2015 1,071
2016 96(
2017 31¢
Thereafte! —

Total minimum lease paymer $5,40¢

16. LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaffipia time to time involved in various pending legations. The litigation process is
inherently uncertain and it is possible that theohation of such matters might have a material esbseffect upon the financial condition and/or
results of operations of the Company. Howeverh@dpinion of the Company’s management, mattergnotly pending or threatened against
the Company are not expected to have a materiagrae\effect on the financial position or resultepérations of the Company.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

HealthStream'’s chief executive officer and printifir@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluatedéffectiveness of the Compasydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a)Hhd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuiti@hange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2012. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principaleincial officer have concluded that
HealthStream'’s disclosure controls and proceduess wffective to ensure that the information rezplito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the Brgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized adtegpwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rubesfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulatedamenunicated to the Company’s management, incluitngyincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performigignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebcitsions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, and for adsgshe effectiveness of internal control oveafinial reporting. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is designed toypde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifynancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauoce with GAAP. The Company’s internal control ofileancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to thexteaance of records that, in reasonable detailjrately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) iperveasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP, drad teceipts and expenditures of the Company ang lmeade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of th@@any; and (3) provide reasonable assurance lieggrtevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef @ompany’s assets that could have a materialteifethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Ceiapaternal control over financial reporting as@écember 31, 2012. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfottle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSOQ) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Managemeag'sessment included an evaluation of the designrafternal control over financial
reporting and testing of the operational effectesnof our internal control over financial repagtiManagement believes that, as of
December 31, 2012, the Company’s internal contvel dinancial reporting was effective based on ¢hosteria. The Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR Lhas issued an audit report on the Company’miaiteontrol over financial reporting,
which appears in Item 8 of this Annual Report omnfrd.0-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in HealthStream’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durthg fourth quarter of 2012 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohtver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

Information as to directors of the Company and omaf®e governance is incorporated by reference frammnformation contained in our 2013
proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of 8hatders (2013 Proxy Statement) that we will fil&hwvithe Securities and Exchange

Commission within 120 days of the end of the fis@dr to which this report relates. Pursuant toggarinstruction G(3), certain information
concerning executive officers of the Company iduded in Part | of this Form 10-K, under the capti&xecutive Officers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in the Company’s 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiianagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Incorporated by reference from the information edmed in the Company’s 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
Incorporated by reference from the information edmed in the Company’s 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in the Company’s 2013 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(2)(2) Financial Statements
Reference is made to the financial statementsdeciun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notciphé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements ol
the notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description
2.10 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompsmh Data
Management & Research, Ir
2.2@ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartirgtion,
Research Consultants, Inc., David Jackson andaitlesdn Charitable Remainder Tr
3.1* Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8&kam, Inc
3.2* Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam
4.1* Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,
4.2* Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and
10.17* 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri] 2000
10.2"® 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 2710
10.37* Form of Indemnification Agreeme
10.47G) Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 20688veen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris
10.5"® Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Employe
10.6"® Form of HealthStream, Inc. Incentive Stock Opticgrédement (Employee
10.7"® Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Directo
10.84) Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between HeaéthBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba
10.9©) First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februan2@87 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.10M Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July @37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust
10.11® Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 1D920etween HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
10.12a0) Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Marct280Q1 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.13uD Fifth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 19, 2Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
10.147 Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse
21.1 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
101.1 INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.1 SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen
101.1 CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
101.1 DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbat
101.1 LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

101.1 PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.



* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on Fori-1, as amended (Reg. No. :-88939).

**  The XBRL-related information in Exhibit No. 10tb this Annual Report on Form 10-K is furnished aad filed for purposes of
Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 193B&ection 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

() Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!

(2) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated March 12, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200!

(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated June 1, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200t

(6) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated February 20, 20C

(7) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 24, 200°

(8) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 17, 200!

(9) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC Ayril 29, 2010.

(10) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Fornr-K, dated March 30, 201

(11) Incorporated by reference from exhibit field on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 20, 201.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on thisst day of March, 2013.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated:

Signature Title(s) Date
/s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR. President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmann¢pal March 1, 2013
Robert A. Frist, Jr Executive Officer)
/s/ GERARDM. H AYDEN , JR. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice PresiddPtifcipal March 1, 2013
Gerard M. Hayden, J Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ THOMPSOND ENT Director March 1, 2013
Thompson Den
/s/ FRANK G ORDON Director March 1, 2013
Frank Gordor
/s/ C. MARTIN H ARRIS Director March 1, 2013
C. Martin Harris
/s/ JEFFREYL. M cL AREN Director March 1, 2013
Jeffrey L. McLarer
/s/ DALE P OLLEY Director March 1, 2013
Dale Polley
/s/ LINDA R EBROVICK Director March 1, 2013
Linda Rebrovick
/s/ M ICHAEL S HMERLING Director March 1, 2013
Michael Shmerling
/s/ WiLLIAM S TEAD Director March 1, 2013
William Stead
/s/ DEBORAHT AYLOR T ATE Director March 1, 2013

Deborah Taylor Tat
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Exhibit
Number

2.1Mm
2.2

3.1*

3.2%

4.1*

4.2*%
10.1~
10.279)
10.3™
10.4"G)
10.5"®
10.6"®
10.7"®
10.8®)
10.96)
10.100
10.11®
10.12a10
10.13uD
10.147
21.1
23.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

101.1 INS**
101.1 SCH*
101.1 CAL**
101.1 DEF**
101.1 LAB**
101.1 PRE*

* Incorporated

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thomswh Data
Management & Research, Ir
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EXHIBIT 10.14
HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”)
Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compensdbn

I. Director Compensation. Directors who are employees of the Company daeusive additional compensation for serving asalars of the
Company. The following table sets forth currenesabf cash compensation for the Company’s non-eyapldirectors.

Retainers and Fee: 2013

Annual Retainer fee $4,00(
Board meeting fe $1,00(
Committee chair meeting fe $1,00(
Committee member meeting f $ 50C

In addition to the cash compensation set forth abesach non-employee director is eligible to ree@iwnondiscretionary annual grant of
restricted share units for conversion to 3,000eshaf the Company’s common stock. The restrictedeshnits are granted annually and vest
over a three year period.

II. Executive Officer Compensation The following table sets forth the current baslases and fiscal 2012 performance bonuses prdiae
our executive officers, including the individual®avthe Company expects to be its Named Executifiegd$ for 2013.

Fiscal

Current 2012

Base Bonus

Executive Officer Salary Amount
Robert A. Frist, Jr. $257,00( $20,15:
J. Edward Pearsc $244,00( $19,13:
Arthur E. Newmar $234,00( $18,34¢
Gerard M. Hayden, J $230,00( $18,03¢
Jeffrey S. Doste $230,00( $18,03¢
Michael Sous: $192,50( $ 5,00t

[ll. Additional Information . The foregoing information is summary in natureldfional information regarding Director and Nant&decutive
Officer compensation will be contained in the Comya 2013 Proxy Statement.



SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

Names Under Which We Do Busine¢

Data Management & Research, |

The Jackson Organization, Research Consultants
Decision Critical, Inc

Sy.Med Development, Ini

HealthStream Acquisition I, In

HealthStream Acquisition 11, In¢

EXHIBIT 21.1

State or Other Jurisdiction

Incorporation or
Organizatior

Tennesse
Maryland
Texas
Tennesse
Tennesse

Tennesse



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-16724ftpjyeng to the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan of Hettham, Inc., Registration Statement
(Form S-8 No. 333-37440) pertaining to the 1994 Byge Stock Option Plan, 2000 Stock Incentive Rliad Employee Stock Purchase Plan
of HealthStream, Inc., and Registration Statemigotri S-3 No. 333-175863); of our reports dated Mdrc2013, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements of HealthStrdam, and the effectiveness of internal controlrdirancial reporting of HealthStream, Inc.,
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Hé&@tream, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 1, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedortas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anlldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: March 1, 201 /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Gerard M. Hayden, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedortas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anlldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: March 1, 201 /s| GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR.

Gerard M. Hayden, J
Chief Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSinednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2012, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jrhi€f Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopteguant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@&t;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.
Robert A. Frist, Jr

Chief Executive Office
March 1, 201:




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSinednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2012, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report"zerard M. Hayden, Jr., Chief Financial Officer loé tCompan
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR.
Gerard M. Hayden, J

Chief Financial Office
March 1, 201:




